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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext 5034

Fax:603-271.5166 TOD Access: 1-800.735.2964

www.dhhs.Dh.gov
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May 27. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu.
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Amoskeag
Health (VC #157274), Manchester. NH, to continue providing sen/ices that ensure timely access
to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental assessment services for children,
birth to age six (6), for whom developmental concerns have been identified, by Increasing the
price limitation by $310,000 ifrom $5,436,050 to $5,746,050 and by extending the completion date
from June 30, 2022 to December 31, 2022, effective July 1, 2022 or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later. 25% Federal Funds. 75% General Funds:

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 19, 2017, item #13,
amended on June 5, 2019, item #36B, and most recently amended on June 30, 2021, item #35.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES,
SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Compreiienslve Nutrition Network

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

- Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $266,525

$0 $266,525

2019 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $266,525

$0 $266,525

2020 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $290,000

$0 $290,000

2021 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $290,000

$0 $290,000

Subtotal $1,113,050 $ 0 $1,113,050

77u! Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency. Governor ChrfstopherT. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Child Development Clinic Network

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

2018 ,561-500911
Spedalty
Clinics

93001000 $600,000
$0 $600,000

2019 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $600,000
$0 $600,000

2020 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $614,000
$0 $614,000

2021 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $620,000
$0 $620,000

2022 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $620,000
$0 $620,000

2023 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $0
$310,000 $310,000

Subtotal $3,054,000 $310,000 $3,364,000

Healthcare Coordination Network

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

2018 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $217,000
$0 $217,000

2019 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $217,000
$0 $217,000

2020 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $275,000
$0 $275,000

2021 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $280,000
$0 $280,000

2022 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $280,000
$0 $280,000

Subtotal $1,269,000 $ 0 $1,269,000

Total $5,436,050 $310,000 $5,746,050

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date, and there are no renewal options available. This request is to extend
the current contract to avoid any interruption in comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary
developmental assessment senrices for children and youth from birth to age six (6) with special
health care needs. The Department is requesting to extend the pediatric interdisciplinary
developmental assessment services within this contract for six (6) months, In order to allow time
to publish a new solicitation seeking proposals to provide child development sen/ices, including
comprehensive pediatric Interdisciplinary developmental assessment services for children from
birth to age six (6) with special health care needs. The Department anticipates the contract
resulting from this new solicitation will be effective on January 1, 2023.

The Contractor will ensure timely access to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary
developmental assessments for children, from birth to age six (6) for whom developmental
concerns have been identified. This v^H partlcularly address the needs of children whose access
to appropriate care is hindered by economic, cultural, linguistic, lack of provider adequacy, or
other social/structural barriers.
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Approximately 200 children and their families will be served between July 1, 2022 and
December 31. 2022.^

Children (and youth) with special health care needs (CSHCN) are defined as "...those
who have or are at increased risk for chronic physical, developmental, behavioral, or emotional
conditions and who also require health and related services of a type or amount beyond that
required by children generally" (RSA 132:13). This includes children and youth, from birth to age
twenty-one (21), with health conditions that:

■  Have a biologic, psychological, and/or cognitive basis;

■  Have lasted or are virtually certain to last for at least one year;

•  Result in limited function, activities or social roles in comparison with healthy age
peers in general areas of physical, cognitive, emotional and social growth and
development; and,

■  Who have a need for medical care and related services, physiological services, or
educational services over and above the usual care for the child's age.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using monthly and annual reports
provided by the Contractor that include, but are not limited to;

■  The number of direct (hands-on) diagnostic evaluations performed with details
about the composition of the team members participating.

■  The number of evaluations performed by each team member.

■  TTie number of parent/school conferences held and who attended.

■  The number and method of outreach consultations to local physicians.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children from birth to age six
(6) who have been identified with a developmental concern or delay and need a diagnostic
evaluation, may have their evaluation cancelled, potentially delaying needed treatment and
services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.994, FAIN # B04MC29353.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Co

ULJ^
. Shibinette \A
missioner ^
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and Child Development Clinic
Networks contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Departrhent") and Amd'skeag Health ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 19, 2017, (Item #13), as amended on June 5, 2019, (Item #366) and on June 30, 2021 (Item #35),
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,.and
modify the scope of sen/ices to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,746,050.

3. Modify Exhibit A-2, Scope of Services. Healthcare-Coordination Network, by deleting it in its
entirety.

4. Modify Exhibit 8, Section 1, Subsection 1.2, to read:

1.2 The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services, Child
Development Clinic Network in compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the
scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

5. Add Exhibit B-15 Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Q'OoeuSigntd by:
>4^7/
teteF454

KhK-zuitt-bUb-U2-HtALi-ui-AU3 Kage 101 j uaie____^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/19/2022

Date

—OoeuSlgn«d by;

Hardy

Title; Director, DLTSS

5/19/2022

Date

Amoskeag Health

—OocuSigned by:

Mccracken

Title: President/CEO

Amoskeag Health

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT-01-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■OocuSkjotd by:
5/20/2022 ^

Date Guarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Amoskeag Health A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
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B-1S-Amendmeni *3

BudQel

New Hampshire Depertmeni of Health and Human Services

BMMr/Pregrem Name Amenkaag HcaSh

Budget Reguctl for: Chttd Oevelopment CMc Network

Budget Period: 7'1/Z2-12/}1/2Z

7oul Program Coit Contnetor SKtre / Match Funded by OHHS corurael ehaie

Line Bern

Direct

bvcremental

Indirect

Fixed

Direct

Incrememai

Indirect

Fixed

Direct

bKremental

ktdireei

Fixed

I. Total SatoryWegee

2. Emptovee BenefM

], ConsutanU

«, Eoiiiemenl:

Rerual

Retiair and Miimeneoce

_Ptachaee^Oeg^eiatjei^
S. Supoliee:

Educational Meiertata, Teats. Joumalt

PharmaCY

_Ocajg8nc)^
t- Current Expenses

Telet>hof»e

Postaoe

SuMCripllons

Auda and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketirtq/Communicaliont

11. Stall Edueaiien and Ttalnirro

17. Subcemcacis/Aoreemertts

13. Other (soecrliodetaasmandalorv):

Psychdooisa

ABed HeaMt Prolessnnals

knerpreters

CommunaY Retations/CDP Network Meetinos
tnlonnalteo TechnoloqY

Central NH VNA A Hosatce

EHol Professional Services Network

Weeks Medical Cenier

Laconia PiYchologisa IJoseoh T. Keenan. Pti.

CommunKY Parlrters
Dues and Fees

Space ASocadon

Admlnisiraifve Fee

TTTnTid S.lltftO «St.M TiToSTWI(,07t.M

Irtdireci As A f>ercent ol Dkeei

Amoskeag HeaBh

RFP-2D1 B-BDS-02^EALT-A03

Exhibit B-IS - Amandmenl •)

Page l of 1
5/19/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' of Slate of ihc State of New Mampshirc, do hereby certify that AMOSKFAG HEALTil is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 07. 1992. 1 further certifj' that all fees

~ and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175115

Certificate Number: 0005780173

0&

a&.

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 19ih dav of Mav A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. David Crespo hereby certify that I am a duly.elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Amoskeag Health

2. The following Is a true wpy of a vote taken, at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 05/03/2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Kris McCracken is duly authorized on behalf of /Vnoskeag Health to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute.any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to.affect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the wntract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire wil Ire y on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltion(s)
indited and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
au^onty of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

5/ 5/^^
Signatur<^ of Elected-Offic^

■Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

03/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

. CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Optisure Risk Partner. LLC

d/b/a Aspen Insurance Agency

40 Stark Street

Manchester NH 03101

coJ[TACT jgn paquin

Kf,..- (603)647-0800 [=« ,,, {603)647-0330
ADMESS- Jen.paquin@optisure.com

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A Selective Insurance Company

INSURED

AMOSKEAG HEALTH

145 HOLLIS STREET

MANCHESTER NH 03101

INSURER B Comp-SIGMA Ltd

INSURERC
Hanover Professionals Direct

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL222116479 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES- LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

InSr"
UTR

TOUT
INSD

SU5IT
vwo

POLICY EFF
(MM/OOA'YYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/OOA'YYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY '

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES fEa occtjfTencel

S 2438257 11/01/2021 11/01/2022

MEO EXP (A/iy enA p<r»on>

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

.VnFC Wiml 1 r

□ fis □ LOC

OTHER;

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1.000.000

300.000

10,000

3.000.000

3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accldefiO S 1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (P«f pefwn)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S 2438257 11/01/2021 11/01/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acddentl

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAS

DED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 4,000.000

S 2438257 11/01/2021 11/01/2022 AGGREGATE 4,000.000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOR/PARTNEWEXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

m HCHS20220000588 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 E-L. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500.000

FTCA Gap Excess Prof Liability
FTCAGap Professional Liab- L3VA515491 &L1V0305375 07/01/2021 07/01/2022

Each Incident

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION.OF OPERAHONS f LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarfcs Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

Re: New Hampshire Dept of Heal^ & Human Services, Bureau of Family Centered Services. Specialty Services for Children with Medical Complexity and
Community Based Care Coordination for Children with Medical Complexity

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATtON

State of New Hampshire- Dept of Health & Human Serv Dean 8. Fancy,
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

^fZCi5: .
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CONTACT INFO

Mailing Address: 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Office Locations:

145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH

1245 Elm Street, Manchester, NH

184 Tarrytown Road, Manchester, NH

88 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH

Telephone: 603-626-9500

Website: https://www.amoskeaghealth.org/

Twitter: @AmoskeagHealth

Facebook: @amoskeaghealth

Linkedin: AmoskeagHealth

STAFF COUNT (01/31/2022)

205 Full-Time

16 Part-Time

23 Per Diem

MISSION

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities we serve by providing

exceptional care and services that are accessible to all.

VISION

We envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families and tight social fabric that ensures

everyone has the tools they need to thrive and succeed.

CORE VALUES

We believe in:

•  Promoting wellness and empowering patients through education

•  Fostering an environment of respect, integrity and caring where all people are treated equally.

with dignity and courtesy

•  Providing exceptional, evidence-based and patient-centered care

•  Removing barriers so that our patients achieve and maintain their best possible health

Where quality and compassion meet family and community

TWO-SENTENCE OVERVIEW

Amoskeag Health provides primary health care for pediatrics, adolescents, adults, and elders; nutrition

counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support programs; and behavioral and mental health

services in a culturally sensitive setting. As a mission-driven non-profit, Amoskeag Health accepts most

insurance and serves everyone regardless of ability to pay.
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500 Character Mission

Amoskeag Health is a 501 c3 nonprofit community healthcare center serving over 15,000 area residents

annually. Our mission is to improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities we

serve by providing exceptional physical and mental health care and social services that are accessible to

all. We envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families and tight social fabric that ensures

everyone has the tools they need to thrive and succeed. We promote wellness and empower patients

through education, respect, and integrity delivered with dignity, cultural sensitivity, and courtesy, using

evidence-based patient-centered model of care.

300 Character Mission

Our mission is to improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities we serve by

providing exceptional physical and mental health care and social services that are accessible to all. We

envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families and tight social fabric that ensures

everyone has the tools they need to thrive and succeed.

SERVICES

Amoskeag Health {formerly Manchester Community Health Center, Child Health Services and West Side

Neighborhood Health Center) is a 501 c(3) registered nonprofit located in Manchester, NH. Established in

1993 as a federally qualified health center, Amoskeag Health provides family-oriented primary health care

services to over 15,000 people residing in Manchester and surrounding communities. Amoskeag Health

promotes wellness, provides exceptional care, and offers outstanding primary and preventive services so

that patients achieve and maintain their best possible health.

Amoskeag Health delivers high-quality, comprehensive health care. Our care assists the needs of our low-

income and underserved populations experiencing significant barriers to care.

As a community health center, we work across 5 physical locations, in 60+ languages, delivering

integrated care for physical, mental and behavioral health, taking an active role to change the outcome

for substance misuse, teen health, geriatric chronic conditions, homebound patients, and children

exposed to trauma. We achieve our mission by providing quality comprehensive health care in a

participatory environment designed to empower our clients, staff and volunteers and by developing

partnerships with other organizations to ensure accessibility, availability, and affordability for all needs
of our clients.

We provide services on a discount fee scale based upon the patient's income and family size in order to

meet the patient's medical and social needs. Basic services offered include: primary family medicine,

perinatal care, nutrition counseling; language interpretation, health education, preventative screening,

medical case management, social services coordination, mental health counseling, and reproductive

health referrals.

Amoskeag Health has five physical locations from which it provides primary health care for pediatrics,

adolescents, aduits, and eiders; nutrition counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support programs;

and behavioral health services in a culturally sensitive setting delivered in 62 languages. Amoskeag Health

administers NH's state-wide Title Vprogram to children aged birth to 21 years who have special needs
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with a chronic medical condition or disability. We also operate a medication-assisted.treatment (MA T)

program in combination with evidence-based therapy for the treatment of addiction. In collaboration with
Manchester Police and Health Departments, YWCA,.and Easter Seals, Amoskeag Health provides

comprehensive care to children and teens, at home and in schools. In partnership with Manchester School

District, Amoskeag Health Behavioral Health Clinicians provide mental health counseling, assessments,

and treatment plans for students. Through a community-wide Youth Enrichment Program, Amoskeag

Health brings behavioral health counseling to afterschool programs to reach middle and high school

students with services for overall physical, emotional, and educational well-being. With a team of

interpreters and community partners, Amoskeag Health removes the barriers to health care by addressing

the whole patient and their social determinants of health - access to food, clothing, housing, and safety at
school, home and workplace. Amoskeag Health received the 2021 Advancing HIT for Quality Award and

the 2021 Health Center Quality Leader Award from the Human Resources and Services Administration, an

agency of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Amoskeag Health has achieved

recognition as a Patient Centered Medical Home organization.

500 Character Services Description

Amoskeag Health operates five offices to provide primary health care for pediatrics, adolescents, adults,

and elders; nutrition counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support programs; and 'behavioral
health services in a culturally sensitive setting. We administer the stat's Title V program to children aged 0

- 21 years with special-needs and a chronic medical condition or disability. We also operate a medication-

assisted treatment (MA T) program and evidence-based therapy for the treatment ofaddiction. With our

interpreters and community partners, we address the whole patient and their social determinants of

health.

2.000 Character Organizational Description

Amoskeag Health is a 501 c(3) federally qualified community health center with five physical locations

from which it provides primary health care for pediatrics, adolescents, adults, and elders; nutrition

counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support programs; and behavioral health services in a

culturally sensitive setting. Working within a culturally diverse population, serving over 15,000 people

annually of all ages in 60+ languages, Amoskeag Health delivers integrated care for physical, mental, and

behavioral health, taking an active role to change the outcome for substance misuse, teen health, geriatric

chronic conditions, homebound patients, and children exposed to trauma. Amoskeag Health administers

NH's state-wide Title V program to children aged birth to 21 years who have special needs with a chronic

medical condition or disability. We also operate a medication-assisted treatment (MAT) program in

combination with evidence-based therapy for the treatment of addiction. In collaboration with

Manchester Police and Health Departments, YWCA, and Easter Seals, Amoskeag Health provides

comprehensive care to children and teens, at home and in schools. With a team of interpreters and

community partners, Amoskeag Health strategically removes the barriers to health care by addressing the

whole patient and their social determinants of health - access to food, clothing, housing, and safety at

school, home and workplace. Amoskeag Health received the 2021 Advancing HIT for Quality Award and

the 2021 Health Center Quality Leader Award from the Human Resources and Services Administration, an

agency of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Amoskeag Health maintains recognition as

a Patient Centered Medical Home organization.
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The 18-member volunteer Board of Directors is currently in the strategic planning process, delayed during

2020.

300 word Organizational Overview

Established in 1993 as a federally-qualified non-profit community health center, Amoskeag Health

provides family-oriented, high-quality, comprehensive, primary health care services to over 15,000 people

residing in Manchester and surrounding communities. Amoskeag Health promotes wellness, provides

exceptional care, and offers outstanding primary and preventive services so that patients achieve and

maintain their best possible health. Our delivery of care model assists the needs of low-income and

underserved populations experiencing significant barriers to care.

Amoskeag Health works across five physical locations to deliver integrated health care for pediatrics,

adolescents, adults, and elders in a culturally sensitive setting, with interpretation services in 60+

languages. We achieve our mission by providing quality comprehensive health care in a participatory

environment designed to empower our clients, staff and volunteers. We build strong partnerships with

other organizations to ensure accessibility, availability, and affordability to the services,clients need to

remove barriers to health care and to address social determinants of health - access to food, clothing,

housing, and safety at school, home and workplace.

We provide services on a discount fee scale based upon the patient's income and family size in order to

meet the patient's medical and social needs. Basic services offered include: primary family medicine,

prenatal and birthing care, nutrition counseling, language interpretation, health education, preventative

screening, medical case management, social services coordination, family support programs, mental

health counseling, and reproductive health referrals. Our integrated care for physical, mental, and

behavioral health takes an active role to change the outcome for substance misuse, teen health, geriatric

chronic conditions, homebound patients, and children exposed to trauma. Additionally, Amoskeag Health

administers NH's state-wide Title V program to children aged birth to 21 years who have special needs

with a chronic medical condition or disability.

In 2021, Amoskeag Health received the National Quality.Leader Award from USDHHS.

2,000 Character Historical Description

Established in 1993, Amoskeag Health is a 501c{3) federally qualified community health center with five

physical locations from which it provides primary health care for pediatrics, adolescents, adults, and

elders; nutrition education, substance use counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support

programs; and behavioral health services in a culturally sensitive setting. Serving over 15,000 people

annually in 62 languages, Amoskeag Health delivers integrated care for physical, mental, and behavioral

health, taking an active role to change the outcome for substance misuse, teen health, geriatric chronic

conditions, homebound patients, and children exposed to trauma. Since 1980, Amoskeag Health's Child

Development Clinic administers NH's state-wide Title V program to children aged birth to 21 years who

have special needs with a chronic medical condition or disability. We also operate a medication-assisted

treatment (MAT) program in combination with evidence-based therapy for the treatment of addiction. In

collaboration with Manchester's police, health department, and school district, Amoskeag Health provides

comprehensive care to children and teens, at home and in schools.
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With a team of interpreters and community partners, Amoskeag Health strategically removes the barriers
to health care by addressing the whole patient and their social determinants of health - access to food,
clothing, housing, and safety at school, home and workplace. Amoskeag Health received the 2021
Advancing.HIT for Quality Award and the 2021 Health Center Quality Leader Award from the Human
Resources and Services Administration, an agency of the U.S. Department of Health and Human

Services. Amoskeag Health maintains recognition as a Patient Centered Medical Home organization
through 2021.

DEMOGRAPHICS

In 2021 during a global pandemic, Amoskeag Health provided direct sen/ices to 15,490 people, 85% of whom
live in Manchester and neighboring towns and 15% live in various surrounding counties. Approximately 76.5%
of Amoskeag Health patients are known to live at 200% of the Federal poverty level or below. Patient insurance
status include 22% uninsured, 52% by Medicaid, 5% covered by Medicare, and 21% by private insurance,
including Medicaid Expansion products.

Approximately 43.5%, over 6,700, Amoskeag Health patients do not use English as their primary language. The
predominant non-English languages are Spanish, Nepali, Arabic, Portuguese, French and Kiswahili.
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200 Character Demographics

In 2019,14,686 patients (6,412 male; 8,274 female) received care; 81.5% live at
200% Federal poverty or below; 44.5% primary language is not English; 40% are
under 19 yrs, 49% 19-59, and 11% 65+ yrs.

In 2019,14,686 patients (6,412 male; 8,274 female) received care; 81.5% live at 200% of the Federal
poverty level or below; 44.5% do not use English as their primary language; 40% are aged 4' 19,49%
between 19-59, and 11% are over 60 years.

These patients' service fees are covered by: 24% uninsured; 6% Medicare; 50% Medicaid; and 20%

private insurance including Medicaid Expansion products.

The predominant non-English languages are Spanish, Arabic, Nepali, French, Portuguese and Kiswahili.

Our patients come from diverse ethnicities:

Asian 1341 10%

Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander 237 1%

Black/African American 2366 16

American Indian/Alaska Native 66 5

White Hispanic _3713 25

White Non-Hispanic 5730 39

More than one race 722 5

Unreported/Refused to report race 511 3.5

WELCOME FAMIUES NH WEBSITE

Community Health Center

Mailing Address: 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101

Office Locations:

145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH

1245 Elm Street, Manchester, NH

184 Tarrytown Road. Manchester, NH

88 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH

Telephone: 603-626-9500

Website: https://www.amoskeaghealth.org/

What Is the basic definition of this resource? (Please summarize in 1 -2 sentences or

bullet points.)*

Amoskeag Health provides primary health care for pediatrics, adolescents, adults, and elders; nutrition
counseling; prenatal and birthing care, family support programs; and behavioral and mental health
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services in a culturally sensitive setting. As a mission-driven non-profit, Amoskeag Health accepts most
insurance and serves everyone regardless of ability to pay.

Provide a description of the services this resource offers. (Please summarize in 1 -2

short paragraphs)

Amoskeag Health promotes wellness, provides exceptional care, and offers outstanding primary and

preventive services so that patients achieve and maintain their best possible health. Amoskeag Health
delivers integrated care for physical, mental and behavioral health, taking an active role to change the

outcome for substance misuse, teen health, geriatric chronic conditions, homebound patients, and

children exposed to trauma. Amoskeag Health administers NH's state-wide Title V program to children

aged birth to 21 years who have special needs with a chronic medical condition or disability. We also

operate a medication-assisted treatment (MAT) program in combination with evidence-based therapy for
the treatment of addiction.

Amoskeag Health removes the barriers to health care by addressing the whole patient and their social

determinants of health - access to food, clothing, housing, and safety at school, home and workplace.

Amoskeag Health received the 2019 Health Center Quality Leader Award from the U.S. Human Resources

and Services Administration. Amoskeag Health maintains recognition as a Patient Centered Medical

Home organization.

Provide all pertinent logistical details that a potential user would need to know about

this resource (e.g. 24/7 support available, event calendars, office hours, schedules).*

Accepting new patients by calling 603-626-9500. In-person appointments are available Monday - Friday

8:00 AM - 5:00 PM; Virtual appointments are available Monday - Saturday with some evening

appointments.

IN-KIND SUPPORT

Amoskeag Health receives generous in-kind support from the community. Non-perishable food, diapers

and wipes, and gently-used baby clothes are the most frequently donated items to our emergency pantry

shelves. At the onset of the global pandemic, the outpouring of donated hand-sewn face masks in adult

and pediatric sizes allowed us to remain open and provide added safety measures for staff and patients.

Donors of in-kind gifts are not provided with a valuation of their gift, per IRS regulations. Internally, if we

had to purchase these in-kind items, we estimate that it would have cost us $28,951 last fiscal year.
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1^ BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amoskeag Health, which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abput the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut ■ West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Amoskeag Health
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Amoskeag Health as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2021, Amoskeag
Health adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with. Customers (Topic 606), and related
guidance. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Portlarid, Maine
November 2, 2021
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable

Grants and other receivables

Other current assets

$ 4,731,957
1,806,238
880,300
300.180

$ 3,848,925

1,650,543

985,801

114.920

Total current assets 7,718,675 6,600,189

Property and equipment, net 4.152,995 4.249.451

Total assets $11,871,670 $10,849,640

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance
Current maturities of long-term debt

$
754,413

1,723,122

52.072

$  450,000
526,311

1,473,665

1,467,800
42.505

Total current liabilities 2,529,607 3,960,281

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.503.059 1.556.661

Total liabilities 4.032.666 5.516.942

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

7,054,282
784.722

4.711.819

620.879

Total net assets 7.839.004 5.332.698

Total liabilities and net assets $11,871,670 $10,849,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue $11,123,864 $10,792,094
Grants, contracts and support 9,926,932 8,334,383
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness 1,467,800
Other operating revenue 110,480 264,523

Net assets released from restriction for operations 1.026.327 1.014.296

Total operating revenue 23.655.403 20.405.296

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 13,238,880 12,918,995
Employee benefits 2,551,855 2,423,466
Program supplies 536,720 519,960
Contracted sen/ices 2,724,436 2,211,397
Occupancy 829,588 725,333
Other 868,512 789,982
Depreciation and amortization 500,368 426,791

Interest 62.581 86.838

Total operating expenses 21.312.940 20.102.762

Excess of revenue over expenses and increase in net
assets without donor restrictions $ 2,342,463 $—302,534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063^717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021

Healthcare Sen/ices Administrative and Support Services

Special Marketing
Enabling Behavioral Medical Community and

Services
Services Health Pharmacv Medir.al Pronrams Services

Services Facilitv Fundraisina Administration Total

Salaries and wages i 1,443,105 $  572,404 $ 2,179,922 $  69,028 $ 5,916,509 $  832,105 $  275,664 $11,288,737 $  132,793 $  165,591 $ 1,651,759 $13,238,880
Employee benefits 279,237 115,773 463,013 17,219 1,018,387 149,979 57,331 2,100,939 23,902 31,089 395,925 2,551,855
Program supplies 1,030 2,259 46,502 181,901 253,478 10,685 28,469 524,324 110 6,004 6,282 536;720
Contracted services 206,814 280,152 122,384 311,761 762,194 347,396 351,447 2,382,148 . 16,018 326,270 2,724,436
Occupancy 105,110 14,372 92,022 3,700 587,893 100,856 - 903,953 (530,075) 14,926 440,784 829,588
Other 78,320 8,310 68,944 - 160,715 18,080 20,064 354,433 72,395 39,600 402,084 868,512
Depreciation and

amortization 566 • 14,276 - 95,931 569 1,573 112,915 242,975 504 143,974 500,368
Interest - . . - . . . . 58.146 . 4.435 62.581

Tola!
S 2.114.182 S  993!270 S 2.987.063 S  583.609 $ 8.795.107 S 1.459.670 $  734.548 $17,667,449 $  246 $  273.732 $ 3.371.513 $21,312,940

2020

Healthcare Services Administrative and Support Services

Special Marketing
Enabling . Behavioral Medical Community and

Services
Services Healfh Pharmacv Medical Proorams Services

Services
Fadlitv Fiindraisino Administration Total

Salaries and wages S 1.718.516 $  .526,822 S 1.927.974 S  79.500 $ 5.631.705 S  842.162 $  236.825 $10,963,504 $  125,802 $  158.008 $ 1.671.681 $12,918,995
Employee benefits 323,122 98.862 360.012 14.705 984,467 154.645 42.814 1.978.627 23.506 28.852 392,481 2.423,466
Program supplies 1,308 2,966 58.720 197.339 231,140 7.369 8.622 507.464 1.419 . 11.077 519,960
Contracted services 152,425 265,070 197.932 338.328 474,948 361.030 166.451 1.956.184 14,136 14.036 227.041 2.211,397
Occupancy 114,192 15,814 99.973 4.020 635,524 109,571 . 979.094 (524,235) 16,216 254.258 725,333
Other 69,816 5.692 87.212 435 101,999 20.137 42.731 328.022 55.165 22.673 384.122 789.982
Depredation and

amortization 205 - 11.358 - 50.809 569 1.224 64,165 241,318 462 120.846 426,791
Interest - . - . - . - 62.889 . 23.949 86.838

Total
$ 2.379.584 $  915.226 $ 2.743.181 S  634,327 S 8.110.592 $ 1.495.483 $  498.667 $16,777,060 $ $  240.247 $ 3.085.455 $20,102,762

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess of revenue over expenses and increase in net
assets without donor restrictions $ 2.342.463 $  302.534

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
1,190,170
f1.026.327^

■  1,028,655
n.014.2961

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 163.843 14.359

Change in net assets 2,606,306 316,893

Net assets, beginning of year 5.332.698 5.015.805

Net assets, end of year S 7.839.004 $ 5.332.698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Equity In loss from limited liability company
(Increase) decrease in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable

• Grants and other receivables

Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Distribution from limited liability company
Capital expenditures

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash used by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

2021 2020

2,506,306 $  316,893

500,368 426,791

- 6,877

(155,695) 240,140

105,501 77,662

(185,260) 40,441

228,102 (50,312)
249,457 262,775

n.467.800) 1.467.800

1.780.979 2.789.067

12,223

(399.526) (274.832)

(399.526) (262.609)

(450,000)
(48.421) (46.368)

(498.421) (46.368)

883,032 2,480,090

3.848.925 1.368.835

$ 4.731.957 S 3.848.925

$  62.581 $ 86.838

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Amoskeag Health (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) providing high-quality,
comprehensive, and family-oriented primary health care and support services, which meet the needs of
a diverse community, regardless of age, ethnicity or income.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Organization to report information
In the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal
income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that the
Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment
to the financial statements.

-8-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-IS) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.
The Organization implerhented an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the corhmunity. In adhering to guidelines issued by the Center for Disease Control and
Prevention, the Organization took steps to create safe distances between both staff and patients.
Medical and behavioral health patient visits were done through telehealth when appropriate.

The Organization received a loan in the amount of $1,467,800 in April 2020 pursuant to the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business
Administration (SBA) under the Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and
the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement (PPPHCE) Act. The PPP is
subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's request, to the extent that the proceeds are used to
pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs, rent and utilities, incurred by the Organization
during a specific covered period. The Organization is following the conditional contribution model to
account for the PPP and determined the conditions for forgiveness were substantially met during
the year ended June 30, 2021. The Organization was notified in May 2021 the PPP was fully
forgiven by the SBA.

The Organization received a loan in the amount of $250,000 in July 2020 from the COVID-19
Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (Relief Loan), a program implemented by the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. The Relief Loan Is unsecured, is
interest free, and has a maturity date of 180 days after the expiration of the State of Emergency
declared by the Governor, at which time the loan is due in full. The Relief Loan has the potential to
be converted to a grant at the discretion of the Governor if certain criteria are met. The
Organization submitted an application to convert the Relief Loan to a grant during 2021, which was
approved and recognized as revenue.

The CARES Act and the PPPHCE Act established the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) to support
healthcare providers in the battle against the COVID-19 outbreak. The PRF is being administered
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). During 2020, the Organization
received PRF in the amount of $214,172. The Organization incurred qualifying revenue losses and
recognized the PRF in full during the year ended June 30, 2020.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, money market funds and petty cash.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and management
believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

-9-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Revenue Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

The Organization has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), and
related guidance, which supersedes accounting standards that previously existed under U.S.
GAAP and provides a single revenue model to address revenue recognition to be applied by all
companies. Under the new standard, organizations recognize revenue when a customer obtains
control of promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Topic 606 .also
requires organizations to disclose additional information, including the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
elected to adopt this ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application; therefore, the financial statements and related notes have been presented accordingly.

The adoption of Topic 606 changed how implicit price concessions are presented in the financial
statements. Under the previous standards, the estimate for amounts not expected to be collected
based upon historical experience was reflected as a provision for doubtful accounts, and presented
separately as an offset to net patient service revenue. Under the new standards, the estimate for
amounts not expected to be collected based on historical experience will continue to be recognized
as a reduction to net revenue, but not reflected separately as provision for doubtful accounts.

The impact of the adoption on the statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2020 was
as follows:

Adjustments
As due to

Originally Topic 606 Revised
Reported Adoption Balance

Patient service revenue $ 11,473,557 $ (681,463) $ 10,792,094
Provision for bad debts (681.4631 681.463 :

Net patient service revenue $ 10,792,094 S $ 10.792.094

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payors (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided, by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligation for medical, behavioral
health and ancillary services from the commencement of a face-to-face encounter with a patient to
the completion of the encounter. Ancillary services provided the same day as the face-to-face
encounter are considered to be part of the performance obligation and are not deemed to be
separate performance obligations. The Organization measures the performance obligation for
contract pharmacy services based on when the prescription is dispensed to the patient. The
Organization's performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time.

-10-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts

. provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The Organization determines its
estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount
policies, and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit price
concessions based on its historical collection experience.

Consistent with the Organization's mission and FQHC designation, care is provided to patients
regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore, the.Organization has deterrhined it has provided
implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with other uninsured balances (for
example; copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in estimating the
transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and amounts the
Organization expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients.

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by the payor. In assessing collectability, the Organization has elected the
portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payor or group of
payors will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as applying the analysis at the
individual patient level, payor concentrations are disclosed in Note 7.

The Organization bills the patients and third-party payors several days after the services are
performed. A summary of payment arrangements follows:

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical and ancillary services based on the lesser of
actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC services furnished to a Medicare beneficiary
on the same day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face FQHC visit. Certain other non-FQHC
services are reimbursed based on fee-for-service rate schedules.

Medicaid and Other Favors

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider
organizations. Under these arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on
contractually obligated payment rates, which may be less than the Organization's public fee
schedule.

-11 -
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization sliding fee discount policy
amounted to $2,662,554 and $2,432,740 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds
received through local community support and federal grants.

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization's standard rates for services provided.
Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing: however, the Organization does, in
certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be significant to the contract.

3408 Contract Pharmacv Program Revenue

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with other local pharmacies under this
program. The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the contract
pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The
dispensing and administrative fees are costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price
concessions which would reduce the transaction price.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws.and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid. and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

-12-



OocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances and consisted of the.following at June 30:

2021. 2020

Medical and dental patient accounts receivable $ 1,710,630 $ 1,532,554
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 95.608 117.989

Total patient accounts receivable $ 1,806,2^ $ 1,650,543

Accounts receivable at July 1, 2019 were $1,890,683.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The accounts receivable from patients and
third-party payors, net of contractual allowances, were as follows:

2021 2020

Governmental plans
Medicare 15 % 20 %

Medicaid 44 % 32 %

Commercial payors 19% 31%
Patient 22% 17 %

Total 100 % 100 %

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amount are considered collectible.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable, grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to
incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue. The Organization has been
awarded cost reimbursable grants of $6,625,746 and $5,557,242 that have not been recognized at
June 30, 2021 and" 2020, respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been
incurred. The Organization also has been awarded $3,372,763. in cost-reimbursable grants with a
project period beginning July 1, 2019.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from HHS. As with all government
funding, these grants are subject to reduction or termination in future years. For the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, grants from HHS (including , both direct awards and awards passed
through other organizations) represented approximately 68% and 58%, respectively, of grants,
contracts and support revenue.

-13-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements .

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets. The
Organization's capitalization policy is applicable for acquisitions greater than $1,000.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of operations as net assets released from restriction.

Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation, interest,
and office and occupancy costs, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as the
shared systems technology fees for the Organization's medical records and billing system, which
are allocated based on the percentage of patients served by each function.

Reclassifications

Donor restricted contributions of $308,131 recorded as deferred revenue at June 30, 2020 were

reclassified to contributions with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2020 as it was
determined there was no requirement to return the contributions. The reclassification resulted in an
increase in the change in net asset of $308,131 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

.  Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through November 2, 2021, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

-14-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

-  Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a $1,000,000 line of credit (Note 4).

The Organization had working capital of $5,189,068 and $2,639,908 at June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources
and Services Administration recommended days cash on hand for operations of 30 days. The
Organization had average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and cash equivalents on
hand of 83 and 71 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year were as follows:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,731,957 $ 3,848,925
Patient accounts receivable 1,806,238 1,650,543
Grants and other receivables 880.300 985.801

Financial assets available 7,418,495 6,485,269
Less net assets with donor restrictions 784.722 620.879

Financial assets available for general expenditure $ 6,633,773 $ 5.864.390

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30:

2021 2020

Land $ 81,000 $ 81,000
Building and leasehold improvements 5,330,228 5,165,754
Furniture and equipment 2.590.248 2.355.196

Total cost 8,001,476 7,601,950
Less accumulated depreciation 3.848.481 3.352.499

Property and equipment, net $ 4.152.995 $ 4.249.4^

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal standards
for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a residual
ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.

-15-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

4. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution with
interest at the LIBOR rate plus 2.75% (3.98% at June 30, 2021). The line of credit is collateralized
by all assets. There was an outstanding balance on the line of credit of $450,000 at June 30, 2020.
There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 2021.

The Organization has a 30-day paydown requirement on the line of credit, which was met for the
year ended June 30, 2021.

5. Lonq-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30:

Note payable, with a local bank (see terms below)

Note payable. New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (NHHEFA), paid in full in July 2020

Total long-term debt
Less current maturities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

2021 2020

1,555,131 $ 1,598,648

518

1,555,131 1,599,166
52.072 42.505

i  1.503.059 $ 1.556.661

The Organization has a promissory note with Citizens Bank, N. A. (Citizens), collateralized by real
estate, for $1,670,000 with NHHEFA participating in the lending for $450,000 of the note payable.
Monthly payments of $8,011. including interest fixed at 3.05%, are based on a 25 year amortization
schedule and are to be paid through April 2026, at which time a balloon payment will be due for the
remaining balance.

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt for the next five years follows as of June 30:

2022 $ 52,072
2023 49,455
2024 50,882
2025 ^ 52,602
2026 1.350.120

Total $ 1.555.131

-16-
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Organization Is required to meet an annual minimum working capital and debt service
coverage debt covenants as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens. In the event of default,
Citizens has the option to terrnlnate the agreement and immediately request payment of the
outstanding debt without notice of any kind to the Organization. The Organization was in
compliance with all loan covenants at June 30, 2021.

Net Assets

Net assets were as follows as of June 30:

Net assets without donor restrictions

Undesignated

Designated for working capital

2021

$ 6,552,445
501.837

2020

$ 4,209,982

501.837

Total S 7.054.282 S 4.711.819

Net assets with donor restrictions for specific purpose
Temporary in nature .

Healthcare and related program services
Child health services

$  518,180
165.184

$  389,092
130.429

Total 683,364 519,521

Permanent in nature

Available to borrow for working capital as needed 101.358 101.358

Total $  784.722 $  620.879

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows for the years ended June 30:

2021 2020

Gross charges
Less: Contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions

Sliding fee discount policy adjustments

$19,234,585
(7,233,156)
(2.266.2751

$18,001,613
(6,697,617)
(2.020.4431

Total net direct patient service revenue
Contract 3408 program revenue

9,735,154
1.388.710

9,283,553
1.508:541

Total patient service revenue $11,123,864 $10,792,094

Revenue from Medicaid accounted for approximately 57% and 53% of the Organization's gross
patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. No other
individual payor represented more than 10% of the Organization's gross patient service revenue.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

8. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $304,497 and $285,796 for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

9. Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of June 30, 2021,
there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be
settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The
Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

10. Lease Commitments

The Organization leases office space under noncancelable operating leases. Future minimum
lease payments under these lease agreements are as follows:

2022 $ 174,782

2023 141,850

2024 124,676

2025 63.929

Total $ 505,237

Rent expense amounted to $274,689 and $226,805 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.
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145 Hollis Street

Manchester, NH 03101

603-626-9500

www.amoskeaghealth.org

AMOSKEAG HEALTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(as of 04/05/2022)

*David Crespo Board Secretary

Angella Chen-Shadeed Director

David Hildenbrand Director

Madhab Gurung Director

Debbie Manning Director

Gail Tudor Director

Obhed Giri Director

*Kathleen Davidson Board Chair

*Rick Elwell Board Treasurer

Dawn McKinney Director

Thorn Lavoie Director

*Christian Scott Board Vice-Chair

Jill Bille Director

Rusty Mosca Director

Where quality and compassion meet family and community



OocuSign Envelope ID; 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFO-8379D91B4FE5

JANET E. CLARK

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Amoskeag Health, Manchester, NH

Director, Special Medical Programs 2003 to Present

•  Management of four programs for children with special health care needs, including the Child

Development clinic, Neuromotor Clinic, Community Based Care, and Nutrition programs.

•  Member of Amoskeag Health Management Team, Marketing and Development Committee

•  Responsible for contract management and compliance with state and federal mandates.

•  Supervise 13 employees and 17 contractors

Regional Program Coordinator, Child Development Unit October 1987 to Present

•  Manage regional Child Development Program including clinical assessment, community relations,

family support, advocacy, all organizational functions of multi-disciplinary team (MD's, PhD's,

support staff).

•  Develop yearly clinical activities, collaborative initiatives and long-range goals.

•  Coordinated Child Development Services Consortium - joint effort by CHS, Area Agency and Early

Intervention Program at Easter Seals.

•  Participated in agency-wide time study for billing and Quality Assurance purposes/UNH Health

Policy and Management Personnel.

•  Coordinated Health Care Transition Grant for three-year A-O/HD Clinic at Child Health Services.

Special Medical Services Bureau, NH Dept of Health and Human Services, Concord, NH

Intake Coordinator (Contractor) September 1997-1999

•  Perform initial intake assessment and develop appropriate service plan for new SMSB applicants

•  Triage referrals, collaborate with community health and human service providers to assure

quality care for children 0-18 years old.

SSI Needs Assessments (Contractor) 1995-September 1997

•  Perform intake/needs assessments for children whose families have applied for SSI benefits and
refer for services as appropriate in compliance with Federal Social Security regulations.

Regional Clinic Coordinator - Genetics Services Program February 1995-July 1998

•  Provided community-based coordination as part of Genetic outreach program coilaboratively

provided by Children's Hospital at Dartmouth and Special Medical Services Bureau.

•  Intake assessment, referral and information to ail families scheduled.

•  Obtained medical history, pedigree and provided family support at clinic.

Child Health Services

Family Support Worker February 1984 -October 1987

•  Part of a multi-disciplinary pediatric team.

•  Responsible for clinical and social services within the agency setting, home visits, coordination of

community resources, interviewing and registration of new families, assessment of need for

social services, determination of eligibility for various financial programs, family budgeting, case

consultation through clinic conferences and interagency meetings, referrals to community

resources, negotiate and advocate on client's behalf, developing and implementing treatment

plans with assigned families, crisis intervention.
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New Hampshire Catholic Charities, inc. Manchester and Keene, NH
Social Worker August 1979 - May 1983

Responsible for the delivery of clinical, social and parish outreach services.

Cooperative Extension Services, Milford, NH

Program Assistant May 1978- June 1979
Responsible for planning and Implementing volunteer recruitment programs for Hillsborough County.

Main Street House, Noank, CT

Assistant Director August 1976 - October 1977

A group home for teenage girls, ages 14 though 18.

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND:

Graduate course work In Public Health, University of NH, Manchester 2000- 2002

Health Administration, New Hampshire College, Manchester, NH 1994-1995

Graduate courses in counseling at Connecticut College, New London, CT 1976-1980

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH,

B.A., Social Work, Providence College, Providence, R.I. 1975

Professional Development:

Certificate In Community Health Leadership (Bi-State Primary Care Association) 2010

Autism Spectrum Disorder, ADOS training, ADHD, Family Support, Genetics, Spectrum of Developmental

Disabilities, Johns Hopkins University, CHAD Child Maltreatment Conferences, ACE/Trauma Informed

Interventions,

References available upon request.
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JESSICA E.TIMMINS

To obtain a position tliat will enable me to use my strong organizational skills, educational background

and ability to work well with people.

-Professional Skills-

Billing 1 Insurance | Excellent Verbal and Written Communication Skills | Assistant Manager |

Interviewing and Hiring process | Multi-tasking | Medical Terminology | Medical Transcription \ ICD-9-

CM/CPT/HCPPCS 11500 & UB claims j

-EDUCATION-

Seacoast Career Schools Manchester, NH 2008-2010

❖ Directors List

CPR and A.E.D Certification 2010

Clinical/ Externship;

> Prerequisite certification hours completed May 2010 at Balanced Healthcare Receivables,

LLC Nashua. NH

-Professional Experience-

Balanced Healthcare Receivables, LLC 2011-Present

> Follow through with claims processing; resubmit; reprocess for updated insurance or updated

codes

> Add, remove, and verify Insurance

> Add and remove billing holds

> Aid patients to obtain financial assistance program

> Set up accounts on formal payment plans to avoid aging into collections

> Updating patients demographics in the system so patient receives there statements

> Process credit cards and eiectronic checks

> Distribute itemized bills and statements to patients, insurance providers, and/or attorney's

> Follow-up with patients to confirm receipt of statements and accurate insurance information

> Follow specific hospital guidelines, manage small balance write offs

> Process paperwork related to bankruptcies

> Systems and applications used: Citrix, Cerner program, iPayX, Rycan, Medicaid Portal,

Latitude program, multi-line telephone, telephone pool queue, Microsoft Word, Excel
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JESSICA E. TEMMINS

Dunkin Donuts, Manchester, NH 2005-2011

Assistant manager

❖ Help the manger with daily tasks, such as inventory

❖ Draw counts and deposits

❖ Interviewing and hiring

❖ Supervising employees to complete daily tasks efficiently

KFC, Manchester, NH 2000-2004

Assistant manager

❖ Assisting the manager In everyday tasks

♦> Assisting with the product count and organization of the store

❖ Interviewing and hiring the right person for the jobs that were available
❖ Cash counts and bank deposits

❖ Making sure the customers were helped in a timely manner

Boston Market, Concord, NH 1996-2000

Shift Leader

❖ Worked as a team member with the entire staff to make sure that the customers were satisfied and
received there order timely

❖ Closed the store at night

❖ Was responsible for the nightly cash counts and bank deposits



MARY ELLEN RYAN, MSN, CPNP

PEDIATRIC NURSE PRACTITIONER

•  34 years Pediatric Nursing experience in variety of settings with culturally diverse
clients

• Effective interdisciplinary team member experienced in providing holistic medical care
•  Primary care provider focused on patient education and family advocacy
•  Independent with strong organizational, communication and clinical skills
• Committed to continued professional education with an interest in Pediatric Development
and Behavioral Medicine and Integrative Medicine.

EDUCATION
Leadership Education in Neurodevelopmental Disabilities, University of New Hampshire
2018-2019

•  Nursing trainee in graduate level training program focused on interdisciplinary, family-
centered, culturally competent systems of care for children and youth with developmental
disabilities and their families;

•  Developed leadership skills that address the needs of children who have
neurodevelopmental disabilities (NDD) and their families, developed an understanding of
public policy and evidence-based care; participated in clinical training at Children's
Hospital at Dartmouth and community-based clinical settings.

Leadership Education in Adolescent Health, Children's Hospital, Boston, 2006 - 2007

• Nursing fellow in Adolescent Health interdisciplinary training program
•  Participated in weekly didactic instruction, clinical experience with diverse inner city

adolescent population.
•  Performed program development, research, and attended numerous faculty-sponsored

conferences.

Masters of Science in Child Health Nursing, University of Texas at Arlington, 1995
Arlington, TX

Bachelor of Science in Nursing, Fitchburg State College, Fitchburg, MA 1986

PEDIATRIC NURSE PRACTITIONER EXPERIENCE

Elliot Health System, Pediatric Specialties, Manchester, NH April 2014- present
Developmental and Behavioral Pediatrics
• Evaluation of children with developmental and behavioral challenges including ADHD,

Autism, learning disabilities and developmental delays.

Pediatric Associates of Portsmouth and Hampton, NH May 2009 - Sept. 2012
• Medical assessment and management of children ages newborn to 20 yrs in busy private

practice

Child Health Services, Manchester, NH 2007-2009

•  Primary care provider for disadvantaged children/adolescents using a bio-psycho-social
model in a non-profit Pediatric clinic and Teen Health Center

Families First Health Center, Portsmouth, NH 1999 - 2006



•  Independently managed patient panel of high-risk children
•  Facilitated developmental screenings by specialist from Easter Seal's Baby Steps

program during well child visits

•  Significantly improved agency's immunization rate and compliance with state regulations
• Collaborated with community agencies to provide comprehensive multi-disciplinary

services

North Central Texas Communitj' Health Center, Wichita Falls, TX 1995
•  Conducted well child exams and acute minor illness visits in rural community clinic

while exercising prescriptive privileges.
•  Coordinated referrals; conducted community outreach and health education programs.

REGISTERED NURSE EXPERIENCE

Phillips Exeter Academy Lament Health Center, Exeter, NH 2007 - 2009

Exeter Pediatric Associates, Exeter, NH 1998 - 1999

VVentworth Douglas Hospital, Dover, NH 1997 - 1998
•  Provided patient care in Level II nursery and postpartum unit on a per-diem basis.

Wichita General Hospital, Wichita Falls, TX 1993 - 1995

•  Supervised training and evaluation of students and staff on inpatient pediatric unit of
rural community hospital.

Addenbrookes' Hospital, Cambridge, England, UK 1990 - 1992
• Delivered care to children requiring hospitalization for cancer, diabetes, and general

surgery at a regional oncology referral facility within the British National Health Service.

New England Medical Center - The Floating Hospital 1986 - 1990
for Infants and Children, Boston, MA

•  Instructed and counseled pediatric oncology patients and families on diagnosis, treatment
protocols and home care.

•  Presented educational updates to staff and provided direct care in outpatient oncology
clinic.

• Administered total care to patients school-aged through adolescence on general medical
unit under primary nursing model.

•  Served as preceptor, charge nurse and member of Policies and Procedures Committee.

CERTIFICATION AND LICENSURE

Certified Pediatric Nurse Practitioner, 1996-present
PNCB- Pediatric Nurse Certification Board

Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner 1996 - Present
State of New Hampshire

Primary Care Pediatric Mental Health Specialist-PMHS- 2017- present
PNCB-Pediatric Nurse Certification Board.

~  PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS



Member of New Hampshire Nurse Practitioner Association (NHNPA)
Member of National Association of Pediatric Nurse Associates and Practitioners (NAPNAP)
Member of Society of Developmental and Behavioral Pediatrics (SDBP)
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CURRICULUM VITAE

Gregory Edward Prazar, M.D.
Exetef. New Hainpahire 03 533
r- • 7' r * - I •! •

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:

1968

1972

1972- 1974

1974- 1976

1976 - present

MILITARY SERVICE:

LICENSURB:

NATIONAL ACADEMIC ft

PROFESSIONAL SOCffiTY

MEMBERSHIPS:

( T- •

B A., The College of Wooster, Wooster, Ohio

M.D., Case Western Reserve Univcreity School of
Medicine, Cleveland, Ohio

Intern and Resident, Department ofPediatrics, Duke
University Medical Center, Durham, North Carolina

Fellowship, Behavioral Pedialrics, Department of
Pediatrics and Division of Child and Adolescent

Psychiatry, University of Maryland Hospitals,
Baltimore, Maryland

Pediatrician, Exeter Pediatric Associates, Inc.,
Exeter, New Hampshire

None

New Hampshire Medical License

Certified by National Board of Medical Examinefs,
1975

Certified by American Board ofPediatrics, 1992,
2002

Fellow, American Academy of Pedidtrics;Section
Member^ Child Development Section, 1978

Affiliate Member, American Academy of Child
Psychiatry, 1981

Member, Academic Pediatric Association, 1982

Member, Society for Developmental and Behavioral
Pediatrics, 1983
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HONORS:

TEACHING & CONSULTING

APPOINTMENTS:

Page 2
Chosen as a member ofthe New Hampshire
Pcdiatric Leadership Task Force, 1992. One of24
New Hampshire pe^atricians choseo by families
who have children with special needs.

Listed by "Best Doctors in America," 1996 -
present

Special Achievement Award from the American
Academy of Pediatrics and the New Hampshire
Pediatric Society for distinguished service and
dedication to the mission and goal? of the Academy,
May 2005.

New Hampshire Pediatrician of the Year, 2009

Clinical 'Assistant in Medicine, Adolescent Unh,
Children's Hospital Medical Center, Boston,
Massacljusetts, 1977 -1979

Consulting Pediatrician, Ritchie McFarland
Children's Center, Exeter, New Hampshire, 1976
present. i

Consulting Physician, Exeter Public Schools,
Exeter, New Hampshire, 1981-1991

Participant, National Conference on Behavioral
Pediatrics, sponsored by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, Easton, Maryland,
March 3j-5,1985
Member! Task Force on Recent Advances,
American Board of Pediatrics, 1985 -1990

I

Member, Time-Limited Certification Committee,
American Board of Pediatrics, 1988 - 2009

Member[ Long-Range Planning
Committee,American Board ofPediatric9,2009-
present

Adjunct Associate Professor of Pediatrics,
Dartmouth Medical School, Hanover, New
Hampshire, 1998 - present.
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TEACHING & CONSULTING

APPOINTMENTS (coDtimied):

Page 3

AAP National Committee Liaison (for the New
Hampshire Pediatric Society) to;

Committee on Practice and Ambulatory
Medicin^ 1987 -1993

Committee on Psychosocial Aspects of
Child ancl FamDy Health, 1987 - 1993 .

Member' Executive Committee, New Hampshire
Pediatric Society, 1988 - 1993; 2005 - present;
Vlce-PfMident; 2007-present

Member; Professional Advisory Committee for
Seacoast CH.A.D.D., 1990 -1998

Elected Member, Executive Committee for the
Section oh Developmental and Behavioral
Pediatrics, American Academy ofPediatrics,
1993 - 2003

i

Member; Editorial Board, Journal of Pediatrica
1993 - 2003

Member; Task Force on Bnviroomental Stressors;
American Academy of Pediatrics Advisory
Committee for De^opment of the DSM - PC,
1994-W5

Member; Task F^ce on Mental Health, American
Academy ofPediatrics, 2006 - 2009

i

Journal Reviewer for;
I
s

Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics.
1986 - present

Journal of Pediatrics. 1987 - present

Archives of Pediatric and Adolescent Medicine.

2004 - present

Journal Lf Ambulatory Pediatrics. 2006 - present

State Chapter Co-coordinator for PROS Network
(American Academy of Pediatrics Office-Based
Research Organization). 1994-present

Member; Task Force on Type 2 Diabetes in
Childho^ and Adolescence, American Academy of
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Page 4

Pediatrics,2008-preseat

MembcT;New England Genetics Group Medical
Home Workgroup, 2007-present

Member,New England Genetics Group Advisoiy
Council, 2008-prcscnt

Member,National Coordinating Center for the
Regional (^netics and Newborn Screening
Collaborative Medical Home Workgroup.2009-
present ]

Member, New Hampshire Autism Council,2010
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PUBLICATIONS:

Journal Articles:

Book Reviews:

Page 5

Prazar, G.E. and Felice, M., 'The PsychosociflJ
Effects ofDiabetes Mellitus in Childhood and

Adolescence." Pediatric Annals. 1975, 4^ 351 -
358. j

Prazar, GjE. and Chamey, E., "Behavioral
Pediatricsj in Practice," Pediatric Annals. June 1980.
Prazar, G.'E., "Conversion Reactions." Pediatrics in
Review. 1987, 8 (9), 279 - 286.

Prazar, g!e., "Psychosodal Risk Factors in
Childhood: What Caii the Pediatrician in Practice
bo?"(Commentary). Journal ofDevelopmental &
Behavior^ Pediatrics. 1990. 11 (4), 210-211.

!
Prazar, G£., "An Office-Based ̂ proach to
Adolescent Psychosodal Issues." Contemporary
Pediatrics. 1997. 14 (5\ 59 - 71.

Prazar, G.R, "The Aural Infrared Thermometer: A
Practitioners Perspective." Joppnal nf Pediatrics.
1998, 133,471.

r

Prazar, G.E., "How Many Pediatricians Does It
Take To Ch^e a Practice?" (Editorial). Archives
of Pediatnc and Adolescent Medicine. 2005,159,

500 - 502.
I

Olson, ̂ ., Dietrich, AJ., Prazar, G.E., Hurley, .
J.H., Tuddenham, A, Hedberg, V., and Naspimky,
D.A, "Two Approaches to Maternal Depression
Screening During Well-Child Visits." Journal of
Developmentai and Behavioral Pediatrics. 2005,26
(3), 1691 175.

j

Olson, A.L., Dietrich, A.J., Prazar, GE., Hurley,
J.R, "Bnef Maternal Depression Screening at Well-
Child Visits." Pediatrics 20O6, 118, 207- 215.

Heifer, R.E andKerape, C.H. (Eds.) The Battered
Child. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1974;
and Steinmctz, S.K, and Straus, M.D. (Eds.),
Violence in the Familv. New York: Dodd, Mead

and Cough., 1974; In The Journal ofNervous and
1975, 1975. 162, 162,437- 439.
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Book Chapters:

Page 6

Shaefer, C.E.. oilman, H.L., Sichel, and
Zwilling.1 S.R., Advances in Therapies for Children.
San Francisco: Josses-Bass, Inc., 1986. In Journal
of Developmental & "PeHiatrtcs 1988, 9.

109.

Levine, Kl.D., Carey, W.B., and Crocker, AC.,
Developrnental-Bebavioral Pediatrics.
Philadelphia: W.B. Saunders, 1992. In Journal of
Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics. 1993.

Prazar, G.E., "Conversion Symptoms in
Childhood." In Primary Pediatric Care. St Louis:
C.V. Mosby, 1987; also in second edition, 1992;
third edition, 1997; fourth edition, 2001.

I

J

Prazar, G.E., "Lying and Stealing." In Pnmarv
Pediatric Care. St Louis: C.V. Mosby 1987;
second edition, 1992; third edition, 1997; fourth
edition, 2001.

Prazar, GB. and Friedman, SJB., "Conversion
Symptoms." In Clinical Practice of Adolescent
Medicine. New Yoik: Appleton-Centuiy-Crofts,
1979.

t

Prazar, G.E. and Friedman, S.B, "Behavioral
Problems in Children and Adolescents." In Current
Pia^nQsis. Philadelphia: W.B. Saunders, 1985,

Prazar, G.E., ̂Temper Tantmins and Breathholding
Spells." I In Primary Pediatric Care. St Louis: c. v.
Mosby Go., 1987; also second edition, 1992; third
edition, 1997; fourth edition, 2001.

Prazar, G.E., "Conversion Reactions in
Adolescents." In Current Diagnosis (8).
Philadelphia: WB. Saunders, 1991.
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Book Ch^ters (continued) Prazar, G.E., Ts3rchosomatic Symptoms and
Conversion Reactions." Tn romprehensive
Adolescent Heahh Care (Friedman, S.B., et al,
edhorsX 1992; second edition, 1998.

Prazar, G.E., "A Private Practitioner's Approach to
Adolescent Problems." In Friedman, S.B., DeMayo
D (eds): Adolescent Psvchiatric and Behavioral
Disorders. Adolescent Medicine: State ofthe Art

Reviews, vol.9, no. 2. Philadelphia, Hanley &
Bellus, Inc., 1998.

Prazar,G£.,"Conversion Reactions and Hysteria."
In: McInemy,T.K„Adani, H.M,Campbel]JD.E.,
KaniatJ>.K, KeIleher,K.J.,eds. American Academy
of Pediatrics Textbook of Pediatric Care. Elk Grove

VillageJL: American Acadeiny ofPediatrics, 2008.

Prazar,GJB., 'Temper Tantrums and Breath*holdmg
Spells."
In:McInemy,T.K.,Adam,RM.,CampbeIl,DB.,Kam
at,D.K,KeUeher,KJ.,eds. American Academy of
Pediatrics Textbook of Pediatric Care. Elk Grove

Village,n:American Academy ofPedi^cs, 2008.

PRESENTATIONS (past 10 years):
"Stories from the Front Line: Successful Patient

Care Improvement Projects." Presentation to
fourth-year Dartmouth Medical School students,
February 26,1998!

"The Rural Medical Home Improvement Project, a
Model of Collaboration and Communication."

Presentation to the New England Rural
Pediatricians' Alliance Association (NNERPA),
May 7, 1999.

"Local New Hampshire Initiatives: the ADaPT
Project, and the Rural Medical Home Improvement
Project" Presentatioii to the spring meeting of the
New Hampshire Pediatric Society, May 19, 1999.

'Diagnoiris and Management of Attention Deficit
HyperactivHy Disorder." Presentation to the Exeter
Community, May, 25, 1999.

———



DocuSign Envelope ID; 40749C57-C6EE^94B-944C-6297E759C4B2

Page 8

*Tediatric Care Coordination at the Medical
Home." Presentation at the following conference;
Enhanced Care Coordination for the CSHCN in

Managed Care Environments: Strategies for the
New hCllennium, September 30, 1999, Portsmouth
New Hampshire.

*'M^gement, Reimbursement and Stress
Reduction Strategies: Behavior-Psychosocial
Problems." Presentation at the Annual American
Academy ofPediatrics Meeting, Washington, D.C.,
October 12,19^99.

"Collaboration and Coordination: The Rural

Medical Home Improvement Project" Presentation
to the MCH-Lend graduate course, University of
New Hampshire, December 10,1999.

"Building Primary Care Medical Homes for
Children with Special Health Care Needs
(CSHCN): Identification of CSHCN." Presentation
at the fall meeting of New Hampshire Pediatric
Society, Crotcbed Mountain facility, Greenfield,
New Hampshire, November 28, 2001.

"Building Nei^borhoods of Medical Homes
through Quality Improvement Learning
Collaborative." Presentation at the National

Summit on Children with Sp^ial Health Care needs
in Washington, D.C., December 12, 2001.

Continually Improving Medical Homes."
Presentation at Expert Panel: Improving Primary
Heahh Care Services for Children with Special
Health Care Needs Through Implementation of the
Medical Home Concept. Sponsored by the
USMCHB Division for Children with Special
Health Care Needs. Boston, June 5-6,2002.

"Seven Habits of Highly Effective Medical Home
Improvement Teams." Presentation at the Medical
Home Learning Collaborative (Learning Session 1),
conducted by NICHQ, Miami, FL, April 4 -5,
2003.
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"It Takes Family-Centered Teamwork to 'Build* a
Medical Home.*' Panel presentation at the First
International Conference on Family-Centered Care,
Boston, MA, September 5,2003.

"Building Medical Homes with Family-Centered
Improvement Teams.** Panel presentation at the
First CATCH and Medical Home National

Conference, Chicago, HI, July 16, 2004.

'Tou and Your Tween Child: A Behavioral Guide
for Parents.** Presentation to the community; at
Exeter Hospital, October 12,2004.

"Defining Well Child Care for Children and Youth
with Special Health Care Needs." Presentation at
National Conference sponsored by HSRA Matei^
and Child Health Bureau and The Commonwealth
Fund, Washington, D.C., October 12-13,2006.

"Use of PDAs in Pediatric Practice at Well Child

Visits as a Quality Improvement Tool**
Presentation at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center Pediatric Grand Rounds, November 22,
2006.

"How to foster a practice which embraces quality,
improvement.*' Presentation at New Hampshire
Pediatric Society Fall Education Meeting, October
10,2007.

"Evaluation and treatmeirt of ADHD in children and
adolescents." Presentation to the community, Exeter
Hospital, April,2008.

"Screening for autism ̂ ectrum disorder in
practice." Presentation at New Hampshire Pediatric
Society Spring Education Meeting, May 12,2010
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Jan McGonagle, M.D.

PHYSICIAN with 25 years of experience in NH and current Harvard University Fellow In Bloethlcs. Created, developed

and implemented state-wide program to improve access and quality care for children with complex medical and
developmental needs. Committed to providing excellent patient care and support through a team-centered approach.

Key competencies:

•  Superb communicator in group or Individual environments with many different constituencies

•  Strong systems thinking approach with ability to view solutions on both a large and small scale

•  Provide quality care for children with a wide range of medical needs

•  Excellent collaboration skills across medical, agency and educational services to devise the most effective

holistic, treatment solutions

•  Strong background working with diverse patients and families

EDUCATION

Harvard University, Fellow in Bioethics, 2019-2020

University of Colorado, Fellow in Hematology/Oncology, 1995; Resident in Pediatrics, 1991-1994

State University of New York at Buffalo, Doctorate of Medicine: Cum Laude, 1991

William Smith College, Bachelor of Science: Summa Cum Laude, 1987

Phi Beta Kappa and Sigma Xi

BOARD CERTIFICATION AND LICENSURE

Board Certification:

Developmental Pediatrics, 2009

General Pediatrics, 1995 •

Licensure: New Hampshire, 1995-present

MEDICAL EXPERIENCE

Special Medical Services, Amoskeag Health, Manchester, NH, 2009-present

Developmental Pediatrician

Serving.the state of New Hampshire's children with complex medical needs. Designed and built state-wide
program that expands access to holistic care for all patients in all regions of the state

New Hampshire Neuromotor Clinics, 2000-2020

Developmental Pediatrician

Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center, Greenfield, NH, 2009-2017

Developmental Pediatrician

Brattleboro Memorial Hospital, Brattleboro, VT, 2003-2009

General Pediatrician

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center, Keene, NH, 1995-2003

General Pediatrician

Cedarcrest, Inc., Keene, NH, 1995-2008

Medical Director

Served as medical director for the school and long-term care facility serving those with disabilities
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Lindsay M. LaFleur

Education

University of New Hampshire; summa cum laude 2016

Master of Early Childhood Education: Special Needs Option

Graduate Certificate in Assistive Technology

Graduate Certificate in intellectual and Developmental Disabilities

Plymouth State University; magna cum laude

Bachelor of Science and Teacher Certification K-3 2009

Work Experience

Child Development Clinic Coordinator for Special Medical Programs 2017 • Present

Manchester Community Health Center, New Hampshire

•  Coordinate three clinic sites (Keene, Laconia, and Manchester); managing a team of three

Developmental Pediatricians and four Psychologists.

•  Participate as an active team member on developmental assessments for children under the age of
seven; familiar with the Autism Diagnostic Observation Schedule, Differential Ability Scales, Bailey Scales
of Infant Development, Childhood Autism Rating Scale, MCHAT, and the Brief Infant-Toddler Social and
Emotional Assessment.

•  Aid in the development of the diagnostic reports.

•  Collaborate with community providers across the state including school districts, non-profits, medical
providers, ABA providers, and mental health providers.

•  Support families through the diagnosis process by connecting to community resources, ongoing

communication between the clinic team, attending school meetings, and conducting home visits.

Early Childhood Special Educator for Early Supports and Services 2014 -2017

Moore Center Services Manchester, New Hampshire

•  Served as eligibility evaluator; completing written evaluation reports and Individual Family Support Plans
- describing child's individual strengths, skill levels and areas for growth in all areas of development.

•  Supported and guided families through the process of transition from Early Supports and Services to
public preschool special education and/or community-based activities by developing partnerships with

community programs and school districts.

•  Conducted home visits- educating families on typical and atypical child development, creating family

and child goals, modeling deyelopmentally appropriate activities, and on-going connection to

community resources.

•  Partnered with New Hampshire universities and mange all incoming student interns; ensuring a smooth
transition into the internship site, creating individualized learning experiences for students, and
documenting their state and program requirements for certification.

Early Childhood Educator for Early Supports and Services 2010 - 2014
Lakes Region Community Services Laconia, New Hampshire

•  Coached parents In advocating for their children's education and impart case management and support.

•  Assisted in creating written procedures for Early Intervention program, adhering to state and national
guidelines.
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•  Participant in several Memorandum of Agreement meetings between the Lakes Region elementary

schools and the Area Agency.

•  Facilitated the family advisory board and parent education classes within the Family Resource Center.

•  Evaluator and educator for New Hampshire Home Visiting Program within the Family Resource Center;

supporting first time mother through education and community resources.

•  Served as an eligibility evaluator, created Individualized Family Support Plans, wrote evaluation reports,
and conducted home visits.

•  Proficient in the Hawaii Early Learning Profile, Infant Toddler Developmental Assessment, MCHAT, and

Ages and Stages Questionnaire.

Paraeducator 2009 - 2010

Bridgewater-Hebron Village School

•  1:1 educator for an eight-year-old child diagnosed with PDD-NOS. Collaborated with lEP team to

encourage child's independence and growth in all areas of development.

•  Knowledgeable in the PECS program, basic American Sign Language, and communication systems.

•  Developed components of Individualized Education Plans.

•  Frequently filled position of substitute classroom teacher, preschool through third grade.

Related Experiences
•  Registered New Hampshire State Early Intervention validator for prospective 2016-Present

Early Intervention candidates; mentoring candidates, reviewing professional

portfolios, conducting peer and supervisor interviews, and communicating

with the New Hampshire Bureau of Developmental Services in regards to

candidates performance.

Intern Site Supervisor - University of New Hampshire; Early Childhood Education 2016-2018

Intern Site Supervisor - Plymouth State University 2010-2018

Intern - Inclusive Preschool Bedford, New Hampshire Fall Semester, 2015

Participant - Parent Leadership Council through Lakes Region Family Resource Center 2013-2014

Participant r Lower Grafton Community Resource Meeting 2012-2014

Mentor-EEIN 2012

Afterschool Early Childhood Educator - Bridgewater Hebron Village School 2009 - 2010

Paid Intern - Second Grade Bridgewater Hebron Village School Bristol, New Hampshire 2008-2009



DocuSign Envelope ID; 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE6

VITAE

Name: McLean, Pat

Education

Institution and Location Degree Year

Conferred

Field of Study

Fitchburg State College B.S.N. 1970 Nursing
University of New Hampshire M.Ed. . 1984 Early Childhood

Special Needs

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

2006-Present Health Care Coordinator/Amoskeag Health. This position involves
coordination of medically complex children birth to 21yrs and their families: Collaboration
with medical and community providers is essential for coordination. As Intake Coordinator
for the Child Development Clinic, this position involves triaging all referrals and
participating on the Clinic team as needed.

2004-2016 Developmental Specialist. Capitol Region Family Health. Concord. NH.

This position involves mentoring OHMC Family Residents and medical students about child
development and precepting them during well child visits. Providing developmental consults to
faculty and residents for children and families in the practice. Participating on the Medical Home
curriculum committee for residents.

1995-JULY 2006 Clinic Coordinator. Seacoast Child Development Clinic - MCH Lend.

Durham, NH.

This position involved coordinating interdisciplinary developmental evaluations and follow up,
coordinating and collaborating with community providers, providing clinical training and
evaluation to interns and fellows enrolled in MCH Lend, University teaching and maintaining a
Business Plan for Seacoast Revenues.

July 2002-July 2006 Adiunct Assistant Professor of Pediatrics. Dartmouth Medical School.

This appointment involved community based teaching of Dartmouth Medical Students and
Physicians.

July 2000-July 2006 Adiunct Professor in Nursing. University of NH. Durham. NH
This position involved guest lecturing for courses in the Nursing Program and
clinical teaching to Master Level Nursing Students.

1986-July 1999 Infant Specialist. Richie McFarland Children's Center. Stratham, NH.
This position involved transdisciplinary early intervention services to infants and their families,
medical/developmental consultation to team members, developmental evaluation of children
birth to three, supervision of UNH nursing students, participation or chairing focus groups in best



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

practice issues and administrative agency decision making.

1986-1988 Research Assistant. University of Massachusetts. Early Intervention Collaborative

Study. Worcester, MA.

This position involved utilizing multiple assessment tools for infant/family evaluation research.

1983-1984 Nurse Coordinator. State of New Hampshire. Bureau of Special Medical Services.
Concord, NH.

This position involved coordinating a neuromotor interdisciplinary team, nursing assessment of
children with neuro-muscular disabilities, counseling and education to children and their
families, and consultation to community nurses and allied professionals.

1982-1983 Intern. Boston Children's Hospital Developmental Evaluation Clinic This position
involved developmental evaluation of children primarily ages three to six years, assessment of
high/risk premature infants, and collaboration on multidisciplinary assessment teams.

1973-1981 Nurse Coordinator. State of New Hampshire. Maternal Child Health. Allenstown,

NH.

This position involved administration of local Child and Youth Project, facilitation of team
development and funetioning, coordinated community involvement in organizing a local
advisory board to the project, collaborated with schools, and state and community lecturing.

1971-1973 Clinic Nurse. Boston's Children's Hospital/Harvard Medical School. Family Health

Care Program, Boston, Massachusetts.
This position involved primary nursing care to families, family planning and child birth
education, collaborating team functioning, curriculum planning and teaching of Harvard
University Family Residents, fellows and medical students, conduction of seminars on nursing
process and team functioning, super\'ision of Northeastern nursing students, and lecturing.

1970-197! Staff and Charge Nurse. Boston Children's Hospital. Boston. Massachusetts.

This position involved providing acute inpatient nursing care.

MAJOR RESEARCH:

Thesis Topic: Towards Coalescence - An Ecological Approach to Developmental Evaluation
(1984)

HONORS: SIGMA THETA TAU INTERNATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY OF NURSING

1997 EXCELLENCE IN EARLY INTERVENTION ANNUAL AWARD
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Julie Rolfes Smith
I

Child Development Clinic at Amoskeag Health 2018-present

Manchester. NH

•  Clinic Coordinator- Coordinate interdisciplinary team evaluations for children ages 1-7 with developmental
concerns including autism, ADHD, and learning. Prepare charts, connect with community providers,
coordinate visit, child interaction/observation, support families throughout diagnostic process, and provide
resources and follow up support.

University of New Hampshire Maine LEND Program 2008- present

•  Family Faculty- Provide perspective and lectures regarding family perspectives on ASD, diagnosis, and
clinical practice. Mentor family trainees. Write and edit Spotlight monthly newsletter. 2008-present.

•  Clinical Placement Coordinator- Coordinate the clinical placements for NH trainees. 2018-present.
•  Clinic and Family Coordinator- Seacoast Child Development Clinic- Supported families of young children

through interdisciplinary evaluation: conducted home visits, coordinated the clinic team, provided
recommendations for family support, monitored and reviewed reports, mentored trainees. In 2013, additional
responsibility of coordinating the clinic structure including referrals, triage, and schedule. 2008-2017.

•  ASD Leaming Collaborative- Early Identification and Screening of Young Children- Worked with team in the
planning and implementation of the series. Presented and represented the family perspective and coordinated
parent partners. 2009-2010.

Leadership Roles and Community Involvement In New Hampshire

•  Community Partners ASD Repository Workgroup, Dover, NH: March 2021- present.
•  Oyster River ASD Friends, Durham, NH: Founder/facilitator of parent group for transition age youth and

young adults, October 2015-present.
•  Family Advisory Council, Community Partners Area Agency for Developmental Services, Family Support, and

community Mental Health, Dover, NH: 2008-2020.
CPAC (Community Partners Autism Committee), Feb 2010- 2018.
BASE, Parent partner for parent training grant, March 2010- March 2011.
Vice Chair, January 2017-present.
•  Family council meetings: 9/2018, 10/2018, 11/2018, 12/2018, 1/2019, 2/2019, 3/2019, 4/2019,

5/2019,6/2019,9/2019, 10/2019,11/11/2019, 1/2020,2/2020.

NH State Family Support Council Representative, Concord, NH: Attended: 7/2018,10/2018, 12/2018,
4/2019, 6/2019,10/2019, 2/2020.

Transition Resource Network Consortium, September 2017-2018.

Transition Community of Practice Collaborative: parent representative, December 2015- August 2017.
NH Disability and Public Health Project Planning Group, November 2012- June 2015.
Institute on Disabilities Consumer Advisory Council, 2008-June 2015.
National Center on Inclusive Education Advisory Council, 2010.
Parent to Parent of New Hampshire: trained support parent, 2007-present.

NH Council on Autism Spectrum Disorders-Screening and Diagnosis workgroup, 2009- February 2013.
Assisted in the design of next steps form for parents of children with positive developmental screening.
Act Early Regional Summit Team- Parent representative- Rl, April 26, 2010.
NH Connections Forum- Family/School Partnerships in Special Education: Parent rep Oct 2010.
FAST-Families and School Together- District project to improve communication. Jan 2011- June 2011.
Oyster River Parents of Young Children with Autism, founder and facilitator. 2005- 2008.
NH Connections: Collaborated to bring ABA workshop with Tom Benjamin to school district, 100 parents and
professionals attended, 2006.
Autism Focus Group, New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Developmental
Services, 2007.

SCERTS Work group Oyster River School District: parent representative on project exploring the adoption of
model for school district, 2005.

I

Guest Speaking/Panels

•  University of New Hampshire, Seminar in Autism Spectrum Disorders: "Family story and Perspective on ASD
Diagnosis and across the Lifespan" Fall 10/2011, 10/2012; 03/2014, 03/2015, 03/2016, 03/ 2017, 03/2018,
03/2019, 03/2021.
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•  Rivier University. Nashua NH. Guest Lecture: Characteristics of Autism Disorder: "Parent Perspective and
understanding the Emotional Response to School Teams\ October 2013.

•  Autism Summer Institute, Presenter, 2010

o  "It's a Play Date, Not a Therapy Session: Parent Perspective on Planning & Supporting a Play Date",
o  "ASD Diagnosis Confirmed: Now What? How parents Navigate Supports and Services".

•  Autism Summer Institute, Parent support coordinator, 2009.

•. University of New Hampshire Department of Family Studies Class: Panel discussion: "Parenting a child with a
disability", Fall 2009.

•  University of New Hampshire Department of Education Class: "Parent Perspective on Special Education
Process and Inclusion of Children in Typical Classrooms," Fall 2009.

•  Autism Summer Institute, University of New Hampshire: Panel for film "Including Samuel", 2009.
•  Oyster River High School: Panel Discussion of Curious Incident of a Doo in the Niaht-time. 2008.
•  University of New Hampshire Department of Music Education: "How Children with disabilities survive public

school: How my son succeeds in the school band program," 2008.

Advocacy

•  NH Dept. of Health and Human Services, In Home Supports Waiver Renewal Listening Session. 12-16-2019.
•  New Hampshire HCBS Corrective Action Plan. Public Feedback Session, Epping NH, 11-19-2019.
•  Tea at Bridge House Governor's Mansion with Valerie Sununu. Concord, NH: Discussion of the challenges

families face with providing supports and services to peoples with developmental disabilities. 10-25-2019.
•  Corrective Action Plan (CAP): Participating In a joint committee.of NH area agencies to advocate on behalf of

parents to allow their case management and services to be administered by their community area agency.
o Meetings, Virtual, Laconia, NH: 6-2019, 7-2019.
o Met with Governor Sununu, Concord, NH, 5-9-2019 and Senator Hassan, Concord, NH 5-30-2019.
o  Conflict Free Case Management/CAP Letter Campaign: Assisted the coordination of a 100 Letter

campaign to state and federal leaders regarding parent concerns over the implementation of conflict
free case management and request to grant waiver in order to maintain present model of care in NH.
2018-present

•  NH State Budget 2018-19 Letter campaign to Governor Elect Chris Sununu requesting an additional 1.3 million
dollars in state funding to support Early Intervention programs. Also provided written testimony to the House •
Finance Committee in support of fully funding developmental Services.

•  Contacted legislators by letter or phone to advocate for the passage of bills:
HB 1687: Bill to develop a Comprehensive Mental Health Plan, 2006.
SB 338, later SB 93: Insurance Coverage for Early Intervention Therapy Services, 2006-07

Public Testimony, 2007-2008.
HB 396: Bill to establish a commission to study autism spectrum in New Hampshire.
HB679: Ah act relative to the delivery of special education services. Short term objectives.
HB 766: An Act relative to special education procedural safeguards, dispute resolution, and

expert vwtness fees.
•  New Hampshire Rules for the Education of Children with Disabilities; Testified to maintain short term

objectives at the request of parents and contacted community board member. 2008.
•  New Hampshire Managed Care Advocacy: Represented area agency's family council and family concerns

regarding the transition of the behavioral health and developmental services to managed care system.
Attended state meetings, regional forum, and met with NH executive councilor to express concerns. 2012.

Publications

NH RAP sheet. Fall 2017: Lookino Back/Movino Forward, a Coffee Conversation: Smith

NH RAP Sheet, Spring 2010: Best Practices for Sharinc a Diacnosis with a Familv: Smith, Fisher. LE
NH RAP Sheet, Winter/Spring 2011: Resource List for ASD. Smith

Education

University of Cincinnati, B.S., 1987, Design.
University of New Hampshire, NH-ME LEND program, 2018.

Previous Work Experience .

Jockey International, Kenosha, Wisconsin, 1997-1999. Men's Designer. Primary responsibility was designing
fashion product for international brand. Worked in corporate environment within the merchandise team.
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Purchased and implemented first computer design system. Traveled to New York and Europe for market
research, supported sales force, and collaborated with international franchisees.

Glllman Knitwear Company, Cincinnati. Ohio, 1987-1996. Knitwear Designer. Designed and manufactured
sweaters and knit apparel. Worked closely with owner and Taiwan office for this family owned company. Traveled
extensively to Europe and Southeast Asia to research and source product. Increased original design and
expanded design staff to three. Assisted national sales force. Purchased and implemented first computer design
system.
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Wendy A. Labrecqiie

Objective:

Qualincatlons:

Participate as a contributing member in a team that will best utilize acquired skills, education, and
experience in accounting.

Includes over 20 years in a wide variety of accounting and fiscal management capacities, involving:

Extensive experience with the day-to-day accounting operations of a non-profit organization,
encompassing skills and responsibilities for the oversight of multiple accounts, including ledger
balancing and posting, AR/AP, collections and reconciliations, as well as budgetary planning,
forecasting and adherence management, P & L analysis, cost containment, IRS tax (990), expense
reporting, balance investments in subsidiaries with the corresponding companies' current year
contributions/distributions and aviation flight tracking spreadsheets for IRS purposes.

Producing operating statements and financial year/end reports, preparation and coordination of
internal/external (IRS) and funding source audit processes (A133), in addition to experience with
corporate consolidation, acquisitions and merger activities, and performing regular intra/inter- fiscal
accounting break-downs and analysis of consolidated balance sheets for multiple corporate entities.

Comprehensive knowledge and hands-on experience with grant administration, budgeting, and
reporting/compliance requirements, managing up to 40 grams simultaneously.

Familiarity with the following computer systems and applications: Windows XP, Microsoft Word 07,
Excel 2010, Excel Piviot Tables, Access, PowerPoint, Solomon, Quicken, ADP Payroll, Peachtree,
Yardi, People Soft, NVision and a variety of data management packages.

Employment
History:

As a team player, providing substantial input into problem solving and quality assurance activities.

Additional skills and experience: effective interpersonal and communications skills; coordination of
volunteer-based programs, including supervision, training and task assignment responsibilities for up
to 20

volunteers.

EASTER SEALS OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Manchester, NH
March 2013 - August 2014
RJ FINLAY MANAGEMENT, Nashua,NH

2008-2013

CHARTER TRUST COMPANY, Concord, NH
2005.-2008

EASTER SEALS OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Manchester, NH
1984-2005 Held various positions from Accounting Clerk to Sr. Accountant

Sr. Accountant

Accountant

Financial Assistant

Accomplishments:

Community/
Volunteer Service:

Recognized for outstanding job performance and presented: The Carousel of Accomplishment/
President's A-feritorious Service Award.

Easter Seals Telethon Pleixie Center Coordinator B to B roth ers / b ig S isters

Education: NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE

Manchester, NH

GOFFSTOWN HIGH SCHOOL,Goffstown, NH

Economics / Accounting 1 & 2
Managerial Accounting Program

Diploma

Continuing Ed.: Attended numerous employer sponsored courses, programs and seminars, including: Adanaging
A/ulliple Priorities. Customer Services, Budgeting Principles, Computer Applications: ExcelO?,
Microsoft Word 07 etc.

References: Excellent professional and personal references are available and will be furnished upon request.
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AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Child Development Clinic Net>\'ork
07/01/22- 12/31/22

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Janet Clark Director of SMP $42,559 62.50% $26,600

Pal McLean Care Coordinator $16,557 25.00% $ 4,139

Lindsay Lafleur Clinic Coordinator $36,279 100.00% $36,279

Julie Smith Clinic Coordinator $15,369 100.00% $15,369

Jan McGonagle Developmental Pediatrician $89,392 48.57% $43,419

CregotT Prazar Developmental Pediatrician $15,569 100.00% $15,569

MaryEllen Ryan Nurse Practitioner $ 7,231 100.00% S 7,231

Vacant Program Assistant $17,337 100.00% $17,337

Wendy Labrecque Accountant $13,159 21.88% $ 2,879

Jessica Timmins Biller $16,512 19.35% $ 3,195



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717.BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

Lori A. ShilNMnc

Comniitioner

Deborah D. Sthectz

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF. LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
003-271.5034 I.800.S52-3345 Ext 5034

Fax; 603.271.5166 TDOAcccas: |.800-73$.2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 11. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Amoskeag
Health (VC #157274), Manchester. NH, to continue providing services that ensure timely access
to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental assessments and to effectively
coordinate primary, specialty, and community care services for children and youth, birth through
age twenty-one ), with special health care needs, by increasing the price limitation by $900,000
from $4,536,050 to $5,436,050 and by extending the completion date from June 30,2021 to June
30, 2022 effective Jiily 1, 2021 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is later. 25%
Federal Funds. 75% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 19, 2017 (Item #13).
and amended with Governor and Council approval on June 5. 2019. item #366.

Funds are anticipated to t>e available In State Fiscal Year 2022. with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation, and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95.93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES.
SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

.Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $266,525

$0 $266,525

2019 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $266,525

$0 $266,525

'2020 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $290,000

$0 $290,000

2021 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $290,000

.  $0 $290,000

Subtotal $1,113,050 $ 0 $1,113,050

The Department of Health and Human Seruicet' Mitsion is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieiv health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Child Development Cl nic Network

SFV
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt)er

Current

Modified

Increase/.

(Decrease)
Revised

Modified

2018 561-500911
Specialty
' Clinics

93001000 $600,000
$0 $600,000

2019 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $600,000
$0 $600,000

2020 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $614,000
$0 $614,000

2021 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $620,000
$0 $620,000

2022 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 SO
$620,000 $620,000

Subtotal $2,434,000 $620,000 $3,054,000

Healthcare Coordination Network

SFV
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $217,000
$0 $217,000

2019 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $217,000
$0 $217,000

2020 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $275,000
$0 $275,000

2021 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000. $280,000
$0 $280,000

2022 561-500911
Specialty
Clinics

93001000 $0
$280,000 $280,000

Subtotal $989,000 $280,000 $1,269,000
Total $4,536,050 $900,000 $5,436,050

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. There are no known
viable alternatives to the services provided by the vendor. The Department published two
Requests for Applications (RFA) to solicit applications for services: RFA-2022-DLTSS-03-
COMMU Community Based Health Care Coordination Services, "on February 9, 2021; and RFA-
2022-DLTSS-02-CHILD Child Development Clinic Network, on March 17, 2021. One.application
was received for each of the two RFAs, both of which were submitted by the current Contractor,
Amoskeag Health. This request is to extend the current contract to avoid any interruption in these
critical services. The Department will effectuate a new solicitation that comports with recent
changes in national best practices for bundling services to maintain pediatric network adequacy.
The Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs
services previously provided by the Contractor through this contract were solicited with a Request
for Proposals, RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR, published on February 1, 2021, and vAW not be
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arxl the Honorable Council
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extended by this amendment.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide services to two (2)
of the three service groups in the current contract, as follows;

•  CHILD DEVELOPMENT CLINIC NETWORK The Contractor will ensure timely
access to comprehensive pediatric Interdisciplinary developmental assessments
for children, from birth to age seven (7) for whom developmental concerns have
been Identified. This will particularly address the needs of children whose access
to appropriate care Is hindered by economic, cultural, linguistic, lack of provider
adequacy, or other social/structural barriers.

•  HEALTHCARE COORDINATION NETWORK The Contractor will effectively
coordinate primary, specialty, and community care services for children and youth
from birth to age twenty-one (21) with special health care heeds and their families
(CYSHCN). This comprehensive coordination will incorporate family-centered
care, increase the accessibility of pediatric specialty care, and improve health
outcomes.

The Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children and Youth with Special Health Care
Needs services previously provided by the Contractor through this contract were solicited with a
Request for Proposals, RFP-2022-DLTSS-04-COMPR, published on February 1, 2021, and will
be provided through the contract resulting from this procurement.

Approximately 1,000 children and their families will be served from July 1. 2021 through
June 30. 2022.

The Department will monitor contracted services using monthly and annual reports
provided by the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children from birth to age
seven (7) who have been identified with a developmental concern or delay and need a diagnostic
evaluation, and children and youth from birth to age twenty-one (21) with special health care
needs, and their families, may not receive critical services. Scheduled child development clinics
may be cancelled, and follow-up visits may cease. Families may have to manage the coordination
of health care, specialty services, and community services independently, potentially delaying
needed treatment and services.

Area served: Statewide for Child Development Clinic Network Services, and Rockingham.
Hillsborough, and Stratford Counties for Healthcare Coordination Network services.

Source of Funds: 25% Federal Funds CFDA# 93.994; FAIN # B04MC29353, and 75%
General Funds

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 40749C57-C6EE-494B-944C-6297E759C4B2

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and Child Development Clinic
Networks contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and Amoskeag Health (formerly known as Manchester Community
Health Center) ("the Contractor").

.V

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 19, 2017, (Item #13), as amended on June 5. 2019, (Item #36B), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Amoskeag Health.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,436,050..

4. Delete Exhibit A-2. Scope of Services, Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children and Youth
with Special Health Care Needs, in its entirety and rename Exhibit A-3, Scope of Services,
Healthcare Coordination Network to read: Exhibit A-2, Scope of Services, Healthcare Coordination
Network, with no changes to the scope of services for the Healthcare Coordination Network.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Section 1, Subsection 1.2, to read:

1.2 The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A-l, Scope of Services.
Child Development Clinic Network, and Exhibit A-2, Scope of Services, Healthcare
Coordination Network in compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the
scope of services may jeopardize the' funded contractor's current and/or future
funding.

6. Add Exhibit B-13, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-14, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

DS

■f/

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT-A02 Amoskeag Health Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/8/2021

Date

OocuSigncd

Name; Deborah p. scheetz

Title: Director Division of Long Term supports and services

6/4/2021

Date

Amoskeag Health

ty:
A

— C5?AF939CS5f<W

Name: Kris McCracken

Title; president/CEO

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT

A-S-I.O

Amoskeag Health

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/9/2021

Oocudign«<t by:

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT Amoskeag Health

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Jeffrey A. Meyen
Commluloeer

Chriillne L SiDtinietlo

Director

STATE OF NEW AMIQ: 05 DAS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-S034 l-m^52-3345 Ext 5034

Fax; 603.271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800.735.2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 9. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authori2:e the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, to exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with Manchester Community
Health-Center, Vendor#157274,145 Hollis Street, Manchester. NH 03101, to continue providing services
that assure timely access to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental assessments,
community based nutrition services, and to effectively coordinate primary, specialty, and community care
services for children and youth, birth through age twenty-one (21). with special health care needs, by
increasing the price limitation by $2,369,000 from $2,167,050 to $4,536,050 and by extending the
completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 25% Federal Funds, 75% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July 19, 2017
(Item #13).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 and SPY 2021, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified?

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, SPECIAL
MEDICAL SERVICES

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $266,525 $0 $266,525

2019 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $266,525 $0 ' $266,525

2020 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 - $290,000 $290,000

2021 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 - $290,000 $290,000

Subtotal $533,050 $580,000 $1,113,050

t.--*
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Child Development Clinic Network

SPY Class/ Account Class Title Jo6 Number
Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 561^500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000. $600,000 $0 $600,000

2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $600,000 $0 $600,000

2020 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 - $614,000 $614,000

2021 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 - $620,000 $620,000

Subtotal $1,200,000 $1,234,000 $2,434,000

ealthcare Coordination k etwofk

SPY Class/ Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

2018 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $217,000 - $217,000

2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $217,000 - $217,000

2020 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 - $275,000 $275,000

2021 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 - $280,000 $280,000

Subtotal $434,000 $555,000 $989,000

Total $2,167,050 $2,369,000 $4,536,050

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue services for three (3) purposes:

1 COMPREHENSIVE NUTRITION NETWORK fCNN) The first purpose is for the
provision of community-based nutrition sen/ices for children and youth, birth through
age twenty-one (21), with special health care needs for whom nutrition concerns have
been identified. CNN services include, but are not limited to the identification, training,
and oversight of staff, intake and eligibility determination, and completion of
community based consultations for Children and Youth with Special Health Care
Needs (CYSHCN).

Z, CHILD DEVELOPMENT CLINIC NETWORK The second purpose is to assure timely
access to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental assessments-for
children, from birth to age seven (7) for whom developmental concerns have been
identified. This will particularly address the needs of children whose access to
appropriate care is hindered by economic, cultural, linguistic, lack of provider
adequacy, or other social/structural barriers.

Z HEALTHCARE COORDINATION NETWORK The third purpose is to effectively
coordinate primary, specialty, and community care services for CYSHCN. This
comprehensive coordination will incorporate family-centered care, increase the
accessibility of pediatric specialty care, and improve health outcomes.

Approximately 2,000 children and their families will be served from July 1, 2019 through
June 30. 2021.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals in Exhibit C-1 of this contract the Department
has the option to extend contract services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Council. This request, if approved, utilizes the two (2) years of renewal that are
available, leaving no additional renewals.
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His Exceiieocy, Governor Chrtslopher T. Sununu
and the Horrarable Council
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Benefits to the system of care for CYSHCN will include but are not limited to:

•  An increase in the participation of families with CYSHCN in planning and
delivery of services in all programmatic areas, including the assessment of
consumer satisfaction.

•  Organizations working with communities will enhance their ability to provide
quality health care and family support to CYSHCN.

•  Integration of services.

According to the most recent National Survey of Children wjth Special Health Care Needs,
,NH has approximately 54,569 children with special health care needs. Through this survey,
parents report that more than half of these children do not have a Medical Home, which is a
physician, primary care provider, or clinic that is the recipient's source of preventive and primary
care services, and one third report difficulty accessing services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, approximately two
thousand (2,000) children will be impacted. Scheduled nutrition consultations and child
development clinics will be cancelled and follow-up visits will cease. Families will have to
manage the coordination of health care, specialty services, and community services
independently, potentially delaying needed treatment and services.

Area served: Statewide (Exception: Only Rockingham, Hillsborough, and Strafford
County for the Healthcare Coordination Network services)

Source of Funds: 25% Federal Funds and 75% General Funds. (CFDA# 93.994; FAIN
# B04MC29353.)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
\will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

j^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and
Child Development Clinic Networks

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and
Child Development Clinic Networks Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and Child Development
Clinic Networks contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this 11th day of Fetiruary,
2019, Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Manchester Community Health Center,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 145
Hollis Street, Manchester. NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 19, 2017, (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council: and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and Increase the price limitation with
no change to the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services: and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions; Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,536,050.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Numt>er, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Exhibit A-2, Scope of Services. Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children and Youth with
Special Health Care Needs, Section 6, Performance Measures, Subsection 6.1. Paragraph 6.1.4,
to read:

6.1.4. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of seven hundred and sixty-five (765) nutrition
visits per year.

MancrtesJer Community Health Center Amendment 01
RFP-2016.BOS-02-HeALT Page 1 of*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and
Child Development Clinic Networks

6. Exhibit A-3. Scope of Services. Healthcare Coordination Network. Section 1. Scope of Services,
Subsection 1.1, to read:'

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that intake, eligibility determination, and services are
provided in Strafford, Rockingham, and Hiltsborough Counties, in accordance with HE-
M 520 which includes, but is not limited to, rules pertaining to:

1.1.1. Application procedures.

1.1.2. Eligibility guidelines.

1.1.3. Financial guidelines.

1.1.4. Waivers.

1.1.5. Services provided.

1.1.6. Appeals.

7. Add Exhibit B-7 - Amendment #1. Budget Sheet for SFY 2020.

8. Add Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #1. Budget Sheet for SFY 2021.

9. Add Exhibit B-9 - Amendment #1. Budget Sheet for SFY 2020.

10. Add Exhibit B-10 - Amendment #1, Budget Sheet for SFY 2021.

11. Add Exhibit B-11 - Amendment #1, Budget Sheet for SFY 2020.

12. Add Exhibit B-12 - Amendment#!, Budget Sheet for SFY 2021.

13. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

The rest of this page left intentionally blank.

Manchester Convnunity Heath Center Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and
Child Development Clinic Networks

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

)ate Name: Deborah D. Scheetz yDate

Title: Director

ester Community Health Center

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Cj^o

state of AJjj^ of /V ̂ ^/>6efore the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly doovd', or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

JusticeSignatuiVof NotaTy-PuSlic or Justice g^e Peace

KURT LAWLOR-JONES. Notary Public
StatD of New Hampahire

MyConwitoton Explfoe October 17,2023
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: /y /rJ/J

Mancbester Communtiy Health Center Amendment

RFP-2018-BDS-02-HEALT Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Healthcare Coordination, Comprehensive Nutrition and
Child Development Clinic Networks

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

#4^
n

Name:

Title:

Da

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Manc/wster Community Health Center
RFP.2016-BDS-02-HEALT

Amendment 01
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New Hampshire Departrnent of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements.

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than

authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, heajth. financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numt)ers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Lssi update 10109/18 Exhibit K Contrectiy Init:
DHHS information

Security Requirement9
Page 1 of 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379O91B4FE5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized

access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used tp distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable.' unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors,' officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

CJ^vs. Last update 10/09/18 ErftlWtK Contractor
OHHS Information jjSecurity Requirements " j
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to, t>e bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not . disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyt>er security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and t>eing sent to and t>elng received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must k>e
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropt>ox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when-sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last update 1(V09/18 E^d^bit K Contractor
OHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
stnjcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and

regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last updsts 1(y09/l8 Ejdt^K Contractorlnr
OHHS Information

Socurity Raquirements
Paga 4 of 9 Data



DocuSign Envelope 10: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD.8379D91B4FE5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-68, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has t>een properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any-
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of. the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Last update 10/09/18 EidilbttK Contractor Initial
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub>contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5, Lasi updsts 10/09/18 ExMbllK Contractor Initiais.
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://vAvw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies,, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

vs. Last updsto 1CV09/18 ExMbitK Contractor Initial
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically arid technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must t>e encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. '

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and t>ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must t^e addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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Jeffrey A. Meyert
Coouniitioner

Cbriatioe SaDtenielto

Director

l3
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SERVICES

Bureau of Developmental Services

106 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-6023 l-800<^2-3346 Ext. 6034

Fax:603-271-6166 TOD Access: 1-800-736-2064. www.dhhs.iih.gev

June 15, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Developmental
Services, to enter into a retroactive agreement with Manchester Community Health Center,
Vendor #157274, 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101, in an amount not to exceed
$2,167,050.00 to provide services that assure timely access to comprehensive pediatric
interdisciplinary developmental assessments, community based nutrition services, and to
effectively coordinate primary, specialty, and community care services for children and youth,
birth through age twenty-one ,(21), with special health care needs, retroactive to July 1. 2017,
effective upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30. 2019. 30% Federal Funds.
70% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 and SFY 2019. upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust
amounts within the-price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIVISION OF
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Comprehensive Nutrition Network

SFY ClassyAccount Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2018 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $266,525.00
2019 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $266,525.00

Sub Total $533,050.00

Child Deve opment Clinic Neitwork

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2018 561-500911 - Specialty Clinics 93001000 $600,000.00
2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $600,000.00

Sub Total $1,200,000.00
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

Healthcare Coordination Network

SPY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2018 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $217,000.00
2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $217,000.00

Sub Totai 5434.000.00
Total 52, f67.050.00

EXPLANATION

2.

This request is retroactive because the contract review and approval process took
longer than anticipated.

Funds for this agreement will be used to meet three (3) purposes:

li COMPREHENSIVE NUTRITION NETWORK The first purpose is for the provision of
community-based nutrition services for children and youth, birth through age twenty-
one (21)" with special health care needs which requires the provision of a
Comprehensive Nutrition Network (CNN). Network services include, but are not
limited to the identification, training, and oversight of staff, intake and eligibility
determination, and completion of community based consultations for Children and
Youth with Special Health Care Needs (CYSHCN).

CHILD DEVELOPMENT CLINIC NETWORK The second purpose is to assure timely
access to comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental assessments for
children, from birth to age seven (7) for whom developmental concerns have been
identified. This will particularly address the needs of children whose access to
appropriate care is hindered by economic, cultural, linguistic, lack of provider
adequacy, or other sociaiystructural barriers.

healthcare COORDINATION NETWORK The third purpose is to effectively
coordinate primary, specialty, and community care sen/ices for CYSHCN. This
comprehensive coordination will incorporate family-centered care, increase the
accessibility of pediatric specialty care, and improve health outcomes.

Benefits to the system of care for CYSHCN will include but are not limited to:
•  Ari increase in the participation of families with CYSHCN in planning and

delivery of services in all programmatic areas, including the assessment of
consumer satisfaction.

•  Organizations working with communities will enhance their ability to
provide quality health care and family support to CYSHCN.

•  Integration of sen/ices.
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.His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

According to the most recent National Survey of Children with Special Health Care
Needs, NH has approximately 54,569 children with special health care needs. Through this
survey, parents report that more than half of these children do not have a Medical Home,
which is a physician, primary care provider, or clinic that is the recipient's source of preventive
and primary care services, and one third report difficulty accessing services.

Manchester Community Health Center was selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. Three (3) Request for Proposals were posted on The Department of
Health and Human Services' web site from March 3. 2017 through April 3, 2017 for three (3)
different sen/ices, outlined above. The Department received one (1) proposal per RFP, all
from Manchester Community Health Center. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a
team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals/applications. The Scoring
Summaries are attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, approximately
two thou^nd children will be Impacted. Scheduled nutrition consultations and child
development clinics will be cancelled and follow-up visits will cease. Families will have to
manage the coordination of health care, specialty services, and community services
independently, potentially delaying needed treatment and services.

Area served; Rockingham. Hillsborough. and Strafford County

Source of Funds: 30% Federal Funds and 70% General Funds. (CFDA# 93.994; FAIN
# B04MC29353.)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Respectfully submitted,

Christine Sai^^iello
Bureau of Devetepmental Services
Director

Approved by:
Jef(r^y A. Meyer^
Commissioner

The Deparlmtnl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communitUs and families
in. prouiding opportunities for cUizens to achieoe health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

^  Summai^Scoring Sheet - ■

w

<o'

Development Clinic Networi<

RFP Namo

1.

2.

3.

4.

RFP-2018-8DS4)3-CHILD

•RFP Number Reviewer Names

Bidder Name

Manchester Community Health Center

Sue Moore, SMS program Director

Paaa/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points
2
' Chris Santaniello. BOS Director

150 115

2 Dee Dunn Tlemey. SMS Family
' Support Administrator

0
150 0

4
Paula Bundy

0
150 0 Tanja Milic

0
150 0

6.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Comprehensive Nutrition Network for
Children and Youth vrlth Special

Healthcare Needs ' '
RFP Name

RFP-2018«BDS-04-COM PR

RFP Number Reviewer Names

^  Sue Moore. SMS Program

Bidder Name

Manchester Community Health Center

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Polrtts

■n

2  o' Chris Santaniello. BOS Director a

1S0 136
j Dee Dunn T1err>ey. SMS Family g

Support Administrator iS

2 0 . .150 0

-  ■ • s:
4  2Tanja Mllic cn

3. 0
150 0 Paula Bundy

0 150 0
6.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

o
o

S
(/)

to

Hoalthcare Coordination Networ1<

RFP Name

RFP-ZOie-BDS-OZ-HEALT

RFP Number Reviewer Names

1.
Dee Dunn Tiemey, SMS Family
Support Administrator (Tech)

Bidder Name
Peas/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

. Sue Moore, SMS Program Mgr
(Tech)

^ Manchester Community Health Center 150 129
3
' Lorene Reagan (Tech)

2 0 150 0
4

Paula Bundy (Cost)

3 0
150 0

5
Tanja Milic (Cost)

' 0 150 0
6.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hflzen Dr.. Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Deois Goulet

Commiuioner

June 20, 2017

Jeff^ A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a retroactive agreement with Manchester Community
Health Center of Manchester, NH as described below and referenced as Ck)lT No. 2017-075. -

The Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Developmental Services,
requests to enter into a retroactive agreement that assures timely access to community-
based nutrition services for children and youth through the provision of a Comprehensive
Nutrition Network (CNN) and community based consultations for Children and Youth
with Special Health Care Needs (CYSHCN). Manchester Community Health Center will
also provide comprehensive pediatric interdisciplinary developmental- assessments for
•children and will coordinate primary, specialty and community care services for
CYSHCN.

N

The amount of the contract is not to exceed 52,167,050.00, and shall become effective
retroactive to July 1, 2017, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval,
through June 30,2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Govemor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DoIT #2017-075

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager,

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'
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FORM NUMBER P>37 (yenioo 5/8/15)

fci2li££: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

ACREEMEhTT
The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agericy Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Community Health-Center

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301'3857

1.4 Contractor Address

145 Hollis Street

Manchester, NH.03I0I

1.3 Contraaof Phone

Number

603-296-9228

1.6 Account Number

05-95-93-930010-5191-561-
500311 / 05-95-93-930010-

5191-562-500912

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,167,050.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agertcy
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1. 10 State AgefKy Telephone Number
603-271-9246

I Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

l.l^A^Wvlcdgcmenl: StateofOtw County of

On ^Oi7 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12. or salisfectorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed thia«dtouum
indicated in block 1.12. 6. G/>
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s^e executed ihiiiAwumcnt in the capacity
mdicated in block 1.12. gS%.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

MY

iSssii
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Sa'To.h . ̂ lo4o^u^'Tl^b^ic

^ / COMMISSION •. ^
s  : expires • =
4 '• 7 7021

.o.- T

1.16 Approval

By:

jjatc Agency Si^re I 1.15 Name and Title of
Date:

il by the Department of Administfatiofi, orvision of Personnel (if applicable) j (iLha^

Director. On:

1.17 Approval Attomey^eneral (Form, Substance and Execution) (\f applicable)

urtcil lie le)op
1-18 Approval by the Govemor^(| Executive

By:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOIVSERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
(hrou^ the agency idenlified in block l.l ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contiactor") to perform,
'and the Contractor shall perform, the work or ̂ e of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have ito liability to the
Contractor, includingwithout limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incuned or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwi^standing any provision of this Agreement to the
oontiary. all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hmunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination'. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in thai
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are Identified and more panicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable (o (he Contraclor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in-
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the -
Contractor shall comply with ail statutes, laws, regulations,
wd orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, •
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
informoiion to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religioa creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifthis Agreement is funded In any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply, with all the
provisions ofExecutive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States D^artment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these irgulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
persorviel necessary to perform the Services. Tlie Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be property
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dote in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance'of this

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials,

Date
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Agreement This provision shall survive terminaiion of this
Agreement.
7 J The Contracting OfRccr spccifteti in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. event of default/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercundcr
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1J failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice sptcifying the Event

- of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and. if the Event of Default Is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used In this Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perforTTunce of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters,.memoranda, papers, and documents,
^1 whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidenii^ity of data, shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Apcemcnt for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (13) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of^any Final Report
described In the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither en agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State. Its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and ail claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

M. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and mainuin in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general.liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4 A
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14.3 The Contrector shaJI furnish to the Conti^aing Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificaie(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under.this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer

/ identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
insurertcc for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cerlifiutc<s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer ideritified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less thiui thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies end warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt front, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workirs'CompensaJion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.K RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
rwponsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subwntractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers"
Compensation laws in connection with the performartcc of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof af\er any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event-of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all oHhc
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given ai the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to (he panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing si^ed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval Is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
. laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of consbuctlon shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

. 20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the Interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

2J. SEVERABILITT. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed In a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding b^een the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the contract effective

date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Sen/ices described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30. 2017. and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation
for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 and SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Information Security Requirements Applicable to All Services
2.1. The Contractor shall sign and comply with any and all system access policies and

procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system. This will be completed prior to

• system access being authorized, and on a regular basis as requested by the
Department.

2.2. The Contractor shall maintain proper security and privacy controls on Its systems used
to connect to the NH State networt< and systems according to applicable.federal, state,

and local regulations and aligned with industry standards and best practices including
but not limited to CMS Federal regulations, HIPAA/HITECH. RSA 359c.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the safe and secure management of vulnerabilities through
recurring practice of identifying, classifying, remediating, and mitigating threats.

2.4. The Contractor shall develop, maintain, and follow procedures to ensure that data is
protected throughout its entire information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department, on an annual t>asis, a written

attestation of HIPAA security compliance, which will demonstrate proper operational
security and privacy controls, policies, and procedures are in place and maintained

. within their organization and any applicable sub-contractors.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide a documented process for securely disposing of data, data
storage hardware, and or media; and will obtain written certification for any State data
destroyed by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or
disaster recovery operations.

M«nche«tef Community Health Center Exhibit A Contri^ tniUals.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

2.7. The Contractor shall render electronic media containing Department data unrecoverable
when no longer in use via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted
standards for secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for
example, degaussirig).

2.8. The Contractor may be required to provide additional documentation when using third
party sen/ice providers tq create, collect, access, transmit, or store State of New

Hampshire data.

Manchestef Community Haatth Center Exhibit A Contrador InHlals

RFP.20t6-BOS-02-HEALT Page 2 Of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Child Development Clinic Network

Exhibit A-1

Scope of Services

Child Development Clinic Network

1. Scope of Services

1.1. < The Contractor shad provide services to children (from birth to age seven (7)) who
have been identified with a developmental concern or delay and need a diagnostic
evaluation, with an emphasis on services for children who:

1.1.1. Do not have timely access to diagnostic services from other sources.

1.1.2. Do not have health insurance.

1.1.3. Have conditions requiring a comprehensive team approach for an adequate
evaluation.

1.1.4. Are medically fragile or have complex medical needs.

1.2. The Contractor shall accept all referrals and collect health records as v^ll as
educational, developrnental. and family information to determine eligibility for the
Child Development Clinics.

1.3. The Contractor shall identify developmental pediatrician(s). community-based
psychologists, allied heatth providers, and local coordinators to participate as
members of the interdisciplinary team performing child assessments. This tisam will
also participate in the development of a plan of care for the child.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide interdisclplihary specialty care, the purpose of which is
to coordinate and collaborate across professional disciplines to provide
comprehensive medical evaluations and treatment.

1.5. The Contractor shall oversee the Regional Child Development Team(s) whose
activities will include, but are not limited to:

1.5.1. Intake.

1.5.2. Triage.

1.5.3. Consultation.

1.5.4. Diagnostic evaluation.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure a Clinic Coordinator will support the family by:

1.6.1. Assisting the family during the Interdisciplinary team evaluation.

1.6.2. Planning the clinical session from the time of initial referral to the satisfactory
completion of all evaluations and assessments.

1.6.3. Being available to make home visits, office visits, on-slte visits, and/or at
community agencies.

1.6.4. Attending school meetings when requested by parents.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure the Clinic Coordinator will conduct an assessment of the
child's needs and assist the family with identifying and-gaining access to' needed
medical, social, educational, or other services.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure a Regional Child Development Coordinator (RCDC) will'
assume the responsibility for coordinating efforts for children with existing specie^
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medical team clinics.. The RCOC will meet quarterly with the State designee, and
coordiriate activities with other State-funded projects providing case-management to
the children In the program.

1.9. The Coritractor shall ensure the treatment team vrar1<s with the family or guardian to
develop a plan of care for'the child. The Individual plan for community-based
sen/ices must specify the type of services required, the individual responsible for
delivering specific services, and their frequency and duration. Incorporated into that
plan Is the indication of how follow-up, monitoring, and reassessment are to occur.

1.10. The Contractor shall plan and coordinate Child Development Network Meetings at
least once a year to convene all interdisciplinary team members. Meetings will
provide an opportunity to review diagnostic processes, evidence-based practices,
barriers, and problem solving.

1.11. The Contractor shall consult with the Department regarding planning, resource
location and coordination of community-based services.

1.12. The Contractor shall collaborate with area agencies in providing care including, but
not limited to:

1.12.1. Early Supports and Services.

1.12.2. Preschool special education providers.

1.12.3. Child care, programs.

1.12.4. Head Start and Early Head Start.

1.12.5. Area agencies.

1.12.6. Community health centers.

1.12.7. Community mental health centers.

1.12.8. Primary care providers.

1.12.9. Allied health professionals.

1.12.10. Medical specialists.

1.12.11. Parent support/ advocacy groups.

1.13. The Contractor shall attend activities as assigned by the Administrator or designee of
the Department.

1.14. The Contractor may be required to attend pertinent technical assistance sessions or

progress revlev^ sponsored by the Department.

2. Staffing

2.1. the Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures. These policies include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Selection and dismissal of staff, volunteers and others;

2.1.2. Delivering or coordinating services under the provider's direction;

2.1.3. Procedures for verifying staff/volunteer qualifications; and,

2.1.4. Program and personnel policies and procedures will t)e accessible a^
available to all agency staff and Special Medical Services.
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2.2. The Contractor shall employ Clinic Coordinators whose qualifications include, but are
not limited to:

2.2.1. Registered Nurse with an active NH Nursing License and at least two (2)
years of experience in care coordination or clinic coordination serving
CYSHCN: or

2.2.2. Licensed Social Worker with at least two (2) years of experience In care
coordination or ciinic coordination serving CYSHCN; or

2.2.3. Early Childhood Educator with at least two (2) years of experience working
with families and young children; or

2.2.4. Parent Professional with at least two (2) years of experience working with
families of children in a Family Navigator or coordinator role. -

2.3.. The Contractor shall employ Developmental Pediatricians whose qualifications
Include, but are not limited to:

2.3.1. Licensed by the State of New Hampshire, Board of Registration In Medicine. '

2.3.2. Have completed fellowship training in child development, developmental
disabilities, rehabilitative medicine, or have equivalent training and
experience.

2.3.3. Have at least five (5) years of experience working with families who have
children with develojxnental issues and/or birth defects in a clinical setting.

2.3.4. Have demonstrated strong Interpersonal skills in communication with
primary care physicians, local early intervention and education agencies,
allied health professionals, and families.

2.3.5. Able to work with children and other health professionals within a
Interdisciplinary framework.

2.3.6. Able and willing to travel within the region on assignment.

2.3.7. Familiarity with standardized cognitive assessments and their applicability to
children with specific disabilities.

2.4. The Contractor shall employ Community-Based Psychologists whose qualifications
include, but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Being licensed by the New Hampshire Board of Examiners of Psychologists
as a certified psychologist.

2.4.2. Possessing a Doctorate degree from a recognized college or university with
a major emphasis in child psychology.

2.4.3. Having knowledge of the principles arnJ practices of developmental and child
psychology that are required for assessment and treatment of Infants and'
young children, birth to seven (7) years of age. This includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.4.3.1. Skill in behavioral observation.
I

2.4.3.2. Psychological testing (cognitive functioning).

2.4.3.3. Scoring and interpretation.

2.4.3.4. Consultation arid counseling. tj, ̂
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2.4.4. Having ten (10) years of experience in child psychology, three (3) of which
should be serving high-risk infants, young children, and their families within
a family/developmental context.

2.4.5. Being able to work with children and other heaith professionals within a
Interdisciplinary frameworlt.

2.4.6. Being able and willing to travel within the region on assignment.

2.4.7. Wortdng under the leadership of, and taking clirilcal direction from the
Developmental Pediatrician at the Regional Project Site.

2.5. The Contractor may employ professionals and paraprofessionals to assist Clinic
Coordinators in providing services which may include, but are not limited to;

2.5.1. Speciatty physicians.

2.5.2. Therapists.

2.5.3. Family support workers.

2.5.4. Community aides.

2.5.5. Ex^rienced parents.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure that paraprofessionals receive appropriate training and
work in collat>oration with, and under the supervision of professional staff.

2.7. The Contractor shall recruit for all positions in the event of a vacancy in any of the
positions.

2.7.1. The Department will maintain final approval in the selection process.

2.7.2. The Department retains the right to reorganize services in the event of a
vacancy to ensure continuity of service delivery.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports using the Department form, which
include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. The unduplicated number and demographic characteristics of each client
receiving services, and insurance status.

3.1.2. Any problems, obstacles, or hindrances experienced during the previous'
month with a plan to address the problems, obstacles, or hindrances in the
following month.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports using the Department template, which
include, but are not limited to;

3.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

3.2.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives for each
activity or service funded in quantitative terms, including statistical measures
for evaluating successful outcomes.

3.2.3. Overall progress and statistical information.

3.2.4. Program effectiveness.

3.2.5. Future plans or goals.
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3.3. The Contractor shall document members of the ihterdisclpllnary team present at all
team evaluatloris, consuttatlon/TA meetings, and/or record reviews. or» the approved
Encounter Forrh. This will include each team member's name and their agency
affiliatipn. .

3.4. . The Contractor shall document family involvement by count of face-to-face
encounters wHh family members.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit a separate statistical monthly report and encounter form
which includes, but Is not limited to:

3.5.1. Application for all children receiving services.

3.5.2. Number of direct (hands-on) diagnostic evaluations performed with details
about the complement of team members participating.

3.5.3. Number of evaluations performed by each team member.

3.5.4. Number of parent/school conferences held and who attended.

3.5.5. Number of outreach.consultations to local MD's and method.

3.5.6. Consult/Technical Assistance/Education:

3.5.6.1. Number of consults provided and to whom.

3.5.6.2. Number of In-services/trainings/ediicational sessions presented to
include topic/who presen'ted/who attended (agency affiliation) and
location.

3.5.7. Number of community planning meetings held including who attended
(agency affiliation) and outcome.

Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are achieved
and monitored to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.1.1. The Contractor shall document the date each referral for Child Development
Clinic services was received and that outreach to the child's
parent/careglvere was initiated within thirty (30) days.

4.1.2. The Contractor shall obtain a completed Department application for each
child scheduled for Child Development Clinic services prior to any child
receiving services.

4.1.3. The Contractor shall provide monthly and annual reports as Indicated in
Section 3, Reporting.

4.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Department for any performance measure th^ was not achieved.
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Scope of Services

Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children and

Youth with Special Health Care Needs

1. Scope of Services

1.1. . The Contractor shall provide services to children and youth, from birth through age
twenty-one (21), wtth special healthcare needs (CVSHCN) who have conditions
requiring specialty nutrition consultation.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide community-based nutritional assessments. Intervention,
recommer>dations, and ongoing monrtoring of the growth and health status of
children accepted for services by the Comprehensive Nutrition Network (CNN) and
the Department. The Contractor shall ensure;

1.2.1. Pedlatric Dietitians that comprise the CNN are available for consultation and
. technical assistance to all Department community-based coordinators and
clinic coordinators.

1.2.2. Nutrition Network Coordinators that comprise the CNN develop and maintain
educational material, policies and procedures, training material, and an
evaluation plan, as well .as collaborate with, other agencies as needed
including, but not limited to:

1.2.2.1. New Hampshire Hospital for.Children,

1.2.2.2. ■ Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center TLC Program.

1.2.2.3. Complex Feeding Team Collaborative Program with Mass
General Hospital.

1.2.3. Intake/Referral Coordinators that comprise the CNN perform data entry as
needed, check health insurance statuses, guide the intake process, provide
referrals', assign clinical caseloads, encourage participation in the evaluation
plan, supervise the activities of all professional and support personnel, and
assure that Dietitians associated with the CNN attend CNN Program/Training-
Meetings.

1.2.4. The Clinical Supervisor of the CNN oversees the reporting process and
reviews notes from the Dietitians for completeness and accuracy.

1.2.5. The same individual may hold more than one of the roles designated above or
one role may be held by a single Individual to meet the needs of the program
and plan of work.

1.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with other community-based agencies, including, .
but not limited to the Department Feeding and Swallowing Program, in order to
ensure coordination of care, interagency referrals, and joint training and planning for
shared clients.

1.4. The Contractor shall review and propose altemative means of service provision
should there be an unmet need identified for a specific population of CYSHCN.
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2. Staffing

2.1. The Contractor shalKnotify the Department in writing within one (1) month of hire of
when a new Pedialric Dietitian is hired, to work in the program. A resume of the
employee must accompany this notification.

2.2. The Contractor shall recruit for the position in the event of a vacancy in any of the
positions.

2.2.1. The Department will maintain final approval in the selection process.

2.2.2. The Department retains the right to reorganize services in the event of a
vacancy to ensure continuity of service delivery.

2.3. The Contractor shall make a request in writing to the Department before hiring new
program personnel that do not meet the required staff qualificalions. A waiver may
be granted based on the need of the program and/or the individual's experience and
education. ' ,

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all health professionals obtain and maintain a
National Provider Identification (NPI) number and credentialing with Council for
Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH).

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that all Dietitians obtain, maintain, and provide
documentation of a State of New Hampshire Dietetic License.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure that all Dietitians have a Bachelor's degree in nutrition
science, foods and nutrition, or home economics, or a Master's degree in nutrition
science, nutrition education or public health nutrition, and current Registered Dietitian
status in accordance with the Commission on Dietetic Registration of the American
Dietetic Association.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure that all Dietitians obtain, maintain, and provide
documentation of professional liability insurance.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports using the Department form which
include, but are not limited to;

3.1.1. The unduplicated number and demographic characteristics of each client
receiving services, and insurance status.

3.1.2. Any problems, obstacles, or hindrances experienced during the previous
rnonth with a plan to address the problems, obstacles, or hindrances In the
following month.

3.2. The Contractor-Shall provide annual reports using the Department template, which
Include, but are not limited to:

3.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

3.2.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives for each
activity or service funded in quantitative terms, including statistical measures
for evaluating successful outcomes.

3.2.3. Overall progress toward program goals and supporting statistical informatiori,
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3.2.4. Program,effectiveness.

3.2.5. Future plans or goals.

3.2.6. Third-party reimbursement funding and progress toward greater finandal
independence.

3.2.7. Future plans or goals.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure that data is inputt^ in a timely manner into the
Department Database system. Additional information may be requested by the
' Department at any time during the contract period. '

4. Billing and Sustainablllty

4.1. The Contractor shall coordinate a system integrating public and private funding to
sustain the availability of specialized nutrition services to CYSHCN throughout the
State which includes but is not limited to:

4.1.1. Developing and maintaining relationships with third-party insurance payers
and public health funders.

4.1.2. Developing a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for nutrition
services, and serve as the paymaster for the established network of
community-based providers' fee-for-service and training activities.

5. Definitions

5.1. Children and youth with special healthcare needs (CYSHCN) - Children and
youth with special health care needs (CYSHCN) are defined as '...those who have
or are at increased risk for chronic physical, developmental, behavioral, or emotional
conditions and who also require health and related services of a type or amount
beyond that required by children generally' (Maternal Child and Health Bureau
(MCHB)). This includes children and youth.ages birth to age twenty-one (21) v/ith
health conditions that;

5.1.1. Have a.biologic, psychological, and/or cognitive basis;

5.1.2. Have lasted or are virtually certain to last for at least one year;-

5.1.3. Result in limited function, activities or social roles in comparison with healthy
age peers in general areas of physical, cognitive, emotional and social growth

' and development; and,

5.1.4. Who have a need for medical care and related services, physiological
services, or educational services over and above the usual care for the child's
age.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following perfonmance indicators are achieved
and monitored to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

6.1.1. Eighty percent (80%) of the families responding to the Department Biannual
Survey shall report that the NFS program services have met all or most of
their NFS related needs and goals.

6.1.2. NFS Program Family Satisfaction Surveys shall have a consistent minimum of
eighty-five percent (85 %) satisfaction with services provided.
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6.1.3. Monthly and annual reports shall be completed as indicated in Section 3,
Reporting.

6.1.4. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of seven hundred (700) nutrition visits
per year.

6.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Department for any performance measure that was not achieved.

t-
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Scope of Services

Healthcare Coordination Network

1. Scope of Services

1.1. The Contractor shad ensure that intake, eligibility determination, and services are
provided in accordance with HE-M 520 wttich includes, but is not limited to. rules
pertaining to:

1.1.1. Application procedures.

1.1.2. Eligibility guidelines.

1.1.3. Financial guidelines.

1.1.4. Waivers.

1.1.5. Services provided.

1.1.6. Appeals.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure each child and youth from birth through age twenty-or^e
.{21) with special health care needs (CYSHCN) and their families that are assigned to
the program has a family-centered plan of care for community-based services that
includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.1. The type of services required.

1.2.2. The individuals responsible for specific services.

1.2.3. The frequency and duration of services.

1.2.4. Identification of plans which include, but are not limited to:

1.2.4.1. Follow-up.

1.2.4.2. Monitoring.

1.2.4.3. Reassessment.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that Health Care Coordinators:

1.3.1. Assume the overall responsibility for assisting the family in accessing
services for the child through the development of a base of knowledge of
appropriate health and social services in the community.

1.3.2. Take primary responsibility for establishing and coordinating the plan and
management of community-based health care, and ensure continuity of care

' and follow-up for CYSHCN. Management includes, but is not limited to
assessment, planning, implementation, and evaluation of health/medical
services delivered.

1.3.3. Communicate and collaborate with agencies including, but not limited to:

1.3.3.1. Medical Homes.

1.3.3.2. Local care providers.

1.3.3.3. Schools.

1.3.3.4. Families.

Manchester Communtty Heatth C«ftlef Exhibit A-3 Contrecior initlta yjlr
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1.3.3.5. Local service agencies.

1.3.3.6. Medical teams In primary and specialty care.

1.3.3.7. Area agency case managers and Family Centered Early Support and
Services (FCESS)staff. ^

1.3.3.8. Morne care nursing agencies.

1.3.3.9. State agencies.

1.3.3.10. Mental health agencies.

1.3.3.11. Child Health Services.

1.3.4. Consult with the Department regarding planning, resource location, and
coordination of community-based consultations, diagnosbcs, and care
planning for individual cases.

1.3.5. Work collaboratively with other disciplines In identifying and meeting the
physical, developmental, psychological, and emotional needs of CYSHCN.

1.3.6. Teach and counsel CYSHCN and their families about health conditions.

1.3.7. Develop parent/client information materials, including wellness and Injury
prevention recommendations.

1.3.8. Identify and utilize appropriate community resources to meet the needs of
children and their families, atxl function as a liaison amor)g the agency, the
family, and the team.

1.3.9. Attend meetings and activities as assigned by. the Department including, but
not limited to: .

•  1.3.9.1. Required Monthly Health Care Coordinator meetings which review
information incjudit^g, but not limited to:

1.3.9.1.1. Best practices.

' 1.3.9.1.2. Department processes.

1.3.9.1.3. Evidence-based practices.

1.3.9.1.4. Regional successes and challenges.

1.3.9.1.5. State-wide initiatives.

1.3.9.1.6. Program development.

1.3.9.1.7. Baniers, and problem solving.

1.3.9.2. Trainings Including, but not limited to topics regarding:

1.3.9.2.1. Professional development.

1.3.9.2.2. Data training.

1.3.9.2.3. Collaboration opportunities.

1.3.9.2.4. Chronic health conditions.

1.3.9.2.5. Healthcare financing.

1.3.9.2.6. Supportive services. ^
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1.4. The Contractor shall coordinate services with the Department which Include, but are
not limited to;

1.4.1. Coordinating efforts for CYSHCN who have community and health care
teams.

1.4.2. Participating in the planning, development and evaluation of program goats
and objectives In conjunction with Department staff Including how best to
respond to emerging issues identifted by state agencies.

1.4.3. Developing, implementing, and revising quality assurance activities and
standards.

1.4.4. Coordinating activities with other State-funded agencies providing case
management, care coordination, family support services, and systems
Improvement for CYSHCN Including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.1. Partners in Health.

1.4.4.2. Division of Behavioral Health's Community Mental Health Centers and
Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative.

1.4.4.3. Bureau of Developmental Services' Area Agencies and. Family
Centered Early Supports and Services Agencies.

1.4:4.4. Family Support Programs.

1.4.4.5. NH Family Voices.

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with area agencies in providing care Including, but
not limited to:

1.5.1. Medical teams in primary and specialty care.

1.5.2. School teams.

1.6.3. Area agency case managers and FCESS staff.

1.5.4. Home care nursing agencies.

1.5.5. State agencies.

1.5.6. Mental health agencies.

1.5.7. Child Health Services.

1.6. The Contractor shall refer CYSHCN and their families to programs and grant sources
as appropriate including, but not limited to:

1.6.1. Womenade.

1.6.2. Harry Alan Gregg Foundation.

1.6.3. Annie's Angels.

1.6.4. Community Action Programs whose offerings may include, but are not
limited to;

1.6.4.1. WIC.

1.6.4.2. Utility payment assistance.

1.6.4.3. Fuel assistance. ^
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1.6.4.4. Weatherization programs.

1.6.5. Assrstlve Technology Services.

1.6.6. NH Family Voices.

1.6.7. Parent Information Center.

1.6.6. Partners in Healthi.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide focus groups to include CYSHCN and their families In
order to improve quality and develop innovative initiatives.

1.8. The Contractor shall enter data into the Department datat>ase by the tenth (10"*) of
the month follovrfng a client encounter which shall include, but not be limited to:

1.6.1. Encounters care plans and assessments.

1.8.2. Progress notes.

1.8.3. Discharge iiiformation.

1.8.4. Intakes.

1.8.5. Complexity and Level of Care scores.

2. Staffing

2.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures including, but not limited to:

2.1.1. Selection and dismissal of staff, volunteers and others;

2.1.2. Delivering or coordinating services under the provider's direction;

2.1.3. Procedures for supportinig students/intems interested in workir>g v^th
CYSHCN:

2.1.4. Procedures for verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee/intern
qualifications; and,

2.1.5. Program and personnel policies and procedures will t>e accessible and-
available to all agency staff and the Department.

2.2. The Contractor shall employ Health Care Coordinators whose qualifications include,
but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Registered Nurse with a Master's or Bachelor's degree and two (2) years of
experience In care coordination or working within community .programs
serving CYSHCN; or

2.2.2. Registered Nurse with an Associate's degree in nursing and four (4) years of
experience in care coordination or working within community programs
serving CYSHCN; or

2.2.3. Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW) and one (1) year of experience in
care coordination or within community programs serving CYSHCN; or

2.2.4. Licensed Social Worker with a Bachelor's degree and two (2) years of
experience in care coordination or within community programs sen/ing
CYSHCN: or

Mtflcnetter Community He«tth C«nlef ExWDtiAO Contraetof InHials
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2.2.5. Early Childhood Educator with a Bachelor's degree and at least 2 (5) years
'  of experience working with famiJies and young children.

2.3. The Contractor shall recruit for the Health Care Coordinator position in the event of a
vacancy in any of the positions.

2.3.1. The Department will maintain final approval in the selection process.

2.3.2. The Department retains the right to reorganize services In the event of a
vacancy to ensure continuity of service delivery.

2.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department In writir^ at least one (1) week prior to
the employee's start date when a new Health Care Coordinator.Is hired to work in the
program. Information submitted with this notification shall include, but not be limited
to:

2.4.1. Full name with middle initial.

2.4.2. Official start date.

2.4.3. Work phone number and email.

2.4.4. Resume.

2.5. The Contractor may employ professionals and paraprofessionals to assist Health
Care Coordinators in providing services which may include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Specialty physicians.

2.5.2. Therapists.

2.5.3. Family support workers.

2.5.4. Community aides.

2.5.5. Experienced parents.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure that paraprofessionals receive appropriate training and
work in collaboration with, and under the supervision of, professional staff.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide data for monthly reports using the Department format,
which Includes, but Is not limited to: ,

3.1.1. The unduplicated number and demographic characteristics of each client
receiving services, and Insurance status monthly. ;

3.1.2. Any problems, obstacles, or hindrances experienced during the previous
month, with a plan to address the problems, obstacles, or hindrances in the
following month.

3.1.3. Assessment of client needs and Individual goals, referrals, encounters,
financial support, and progress notes.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports using the Department template, which
Include, but are not limited to:

3.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

Manchester Communiiy Heafth Cemor ExWbil A-3 Contractor Initials
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3.2.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives for each
activity or service funded in quantitative terms, including statistical measures
for evaluating successful outcomes.

3.2.3. Overall progress toward program goals and supporting stabstical
information.

3.2.4. Program effectiveness.

3.2.5. Future plans or goals.

3.3, The Contractor shall ensure that data Is Inputted In a timely manner into the
Departn>ent Database system. Addrtlonal Informabon may be requested by the

. Department at any time during the contract period.

4. Definitions

4.1. Children and youth with special heatthcare needs (CYSHCN) - Children and
youth with spedal health care needs (CYSHCN) are defined as "...those who have
or are at increased risk for chronic physical, developmental, behavioral, or emotional
conditions and wrho also require health and relat^ services of a type or amount
beyond that required by children generally' (Maternal Child and Health Bureau
(MCHB)). This Includes children and youth ages birth to age twenty-one (21) with
health condibons that;

4.1.1. Have a biologic, psychological, and/or cognitive basis;

4.1.2. Have lasted or are virtually certain to last for at least one year;

4.1.3. Result In limited function, activities or social roles in comparison with healthy
age peers in general areas of physical, cognitive, emotional and social
growth and development; and.

4.1.4. Who have a need for medical care and related services, physiologica)
services, or educational services over and above the usual care for the
child's age.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that the following performance indicators are achieved
arid monitored to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

5.1.1. The Contractor shall initiate contact with a child's parent/caregiver within
thirty (30) days of the receipt of an application for intake or referral.

5.1.2. Audits of the encounter data in the Department database will demonstrate
100% compliance with guidance regarding transition readiness of youth and
consistent with standards set for Level of Care/Complexity.

5.1.3. Monthly and annual reports as Indicated in Section 3. Reporting.

5.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Department for any performance measure that was not achieved.

Manchetter Community Hcstlh Center &xrilt>it A-3 Contractor tniUsis
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shaJI pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded with furvls from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Maternal
and Child Heallh Services Block Grant. CFDA #93.994 Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN).
BD4MC29353.

• Federal Funds from the Child Health Services Block Grant
• General Funds

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with funding
reguinements. Failure to meet the scope of services rhay jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement bases for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated ar>d returned to the Department in order to
inrtiaie payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice,
subsequent to epproval of the submitted invoice and if sufTiclent funds are available. Contractors will

keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. invoices shall be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Senrices
Special Medical Services
129 Pleasant Street. Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301
Email address: Robin.Hlobeczy@dhhs.nh.gov

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as kJeritified in Exhtoti
A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line Kerns, related Kerns, amendments of related budget exhibKs wKhin the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made wHhout obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

ManefteiterConwnunity Hearth C«fttef ExWOHB Cootraaof irXtlal#,
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail fur^s received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for se^ices provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the ̂ oresaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligbllity
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation; In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
Informatbn necessary to support an eligibtlity determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
ri^arding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Healings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Oratultlee or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employeos or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurr^ for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eiigtole for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Departrnent to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate wtiich exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such senrice. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments heireunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
Of other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in v^ich event new rates shell be establish^;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in'

excess of costs:

ExNbit C - Special Provisiona Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 5 Date m



DocuSign Envelope ID: 566A2211-3063-4717-BCFD-8379D91B4FE5

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Hurnan Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event faUure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any indivldual.who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contwtor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents arvJ other data evidef>cinQ ai>d reflecting all costs -

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ell
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance wrth accounting procedures and practices which sufficientfy and
properly refl^ all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, wrthoul (imitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
pur^ase requisitions end orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by tt̂ e
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment. attendarKe or visit records for each recipient of
servicw during the Contract Period, which records shall liKlude all records of application and
eligibility (ihciuding all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizatiorw.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports arxJ records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts aixJ transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall bo held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential ar^d shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the edminotration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited excapt on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

EjtWbit c - Sp«dsi PfovWons Cootraciof tnftlar# ^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall sun/ive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Report#; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following .
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

alt costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall tjo deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goats and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Cr^lts: All documents, notices, press releases; research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with furtds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.; the United States Department of Health arxt Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any n^terials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders arKi regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the prowsion of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contradcr hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. .Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received.a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExMM C - Spodal Provblons Contrsctor Initiate
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-

.  profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ere available at; http://www.oip.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.p^.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with LImrted English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP per^ns have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
followjng shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights ano Requirement To Inform EMaovEES of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or conven ier>ce,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's perfonmar>ce is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditlorrs as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure 8ul)contractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function ■ .

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities end how sanctions/revoMtion will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the 8ut>contractor's performance on an ongoing basis

/  ExNtx'l C - special Provisions Contnctor InitiBb
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19.4. Provide (o DHH5 an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responstbilltles, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review end approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

OERNITtONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shell have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the.Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FIfWNCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled Tinandal Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activrties of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract arid setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Service containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch S41-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder:

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibli C - Special Provision Contrador initials.
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Exhibit C.1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part, under this Agreement are
contirtgent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or othenwse modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In r>o event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services urxJer this Agreement Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account Into the Accounl(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Numtief,
or any other account, in the event funds are redxed or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination. Is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reas<^. at the sole discretion of the State,

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to temiinate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
itevelop ar^ submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement. Including but not
limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process'to meet those needs.

10.3 the Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transKloned to having services delivered by another entity .including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shell esteblish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

<

Exhibit 0*1 - Revisions to General Provisions Contrcoor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 515V5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). arxl further agrees to have the Contractors representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wortrplace Actof 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees ar>d sut>-
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-contractor8) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agerKy awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Heatlh and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
CorKord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

.  dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1'.2.V The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees fordmg abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

' employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant .
officer on whose grant 8ctn% the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibh 0 - Ceniflcailon roganJing Drug FrM Contractor Ntiats
' Workplsce Requiremervs
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6.' Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel ̂ ion against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such empbyee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implemenlation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3. 1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided l>elow the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specifrc grant.

Place of Performartce (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: Manchcifer

JihiO-
Title:^^-,Cjl^nV/CeO

Exhibit 0 - Centflcailor) reganting Drug Frve Contractor inhiata
Workplaca Reqiirementi
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sedions 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he following CertlTication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
. US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Seivices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any furvds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Ks instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Commwi'V^

Date' " ' Ntfme.'ifyfvS McCfftcVWA.

Exhibli E - CerxMcstion Regarding Lobbying ConUaclor Initials
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CERTiFICATIQN REQARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBtUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12ofthe General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below win not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
ejqolanation of why it canrwt provide the certificatjon. The certification or explanation will.be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
determir«tion whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other reniedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has t>Mome erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. _.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant.' "person." 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction t>e entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, tneligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modrficaticn. in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered.transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in (he foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

fc.
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Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions. If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volunlarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this triansaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principab;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transacllons by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have noi within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted'of or had

a civil judgn>ent rendered against them for commission of fraud or e criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminaify or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its krrowtedge and belief that it and its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended; proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excfudod from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
.  include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibiiity, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in alt lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: WfihCilCslCf Cor>iin^*^

Narny
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CERTIFtCATION OF COMPLiANCE WTTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAt. NONDISCRIMINATiQN. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-BASED ORGANiZATiONS AND

WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identifi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions asrees by slQnature of the Contractor's
representatlvB as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foitowino
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
' federal ncndiscriminatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control arxl Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices of In
the delivery of services or benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act •
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefrts. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employmeni Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discrimir^ating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohbits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discrimii^ting on the basis of disability, in regard to employmeni and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans wrth Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In empbyment. State and local
government services, public accommodatbns. commercial facilities, and transportatton;

•the Educatbn Amendments ofl 972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discriminatton on the basis of sex in federally assisted educatbn programs;

- the Age Discriminatbn Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discriminatbn on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal finarxiial assistance. It does not Include
empbyment discriminatbn;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulatbns - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatbn; Equal Empbyment Opportunity; Polbies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protectbn of the laws for faith-based and community
organlzatbns); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizatbns;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatbns - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based .
Organizatbns); and Whistleblower protectbns 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natbnal Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pibt Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebtawer Protections, v^ich protects empbyees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or vlotalbn of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspensbn or terminatbn of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Extiibn G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency mak^ a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, tfie recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Crvi) Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply wKh the provisions
indicated above.

Da

Contractor Name: MQncV\^-le»' G?rv\MOn\^

Na

Title: | CcO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chtldren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
coritracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or tean guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in prrvato residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result ir> the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Conlraclor Name: Co*vi>»lor\>Vu

Dale Nam^:

H - C«rtifluUon Regarding Contrsctor Initi
Environments! Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLiTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Hearth Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Assrxiate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
recdve, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Brgqgh' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Business Associate* has the meaning givpn curh torm in I60.103of Title45^ Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. !£overgiEnti5£ has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title.45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

^  'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Sectlon164.501. "

Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitieXIII. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR parts 160, 162 ar>d 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Indivlduar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance vrith 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

I  'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- 'Protect^ Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in .45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

^0'* ExNWll CofitfactofIffitlttti
HflBlth InBunne* PartxhUtiv A£t rHealth Insurance PortabUlry Act
Bualnest Aaaotiate Agreement
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I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. ar^d amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by tt>e American National Standards
Institute.

P- Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate rnay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. t>elow; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed onty as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business ^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Actlvrtles of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Infonnation of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but. not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved. Including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re^identrfication;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete tfte risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, t)00ks
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance v^th HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's, Intended business associates, who will t)e receiving PHI^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by.standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records. t>ooks. agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

. g. Within ten {10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.526.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
.  request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available

to.Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
.Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual^ request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

■>

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, frie
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by ^e Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses ard disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^
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Associdte malntsins such PHI. If .Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or Ijmitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a- Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

Ametxlment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree^that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application ttiereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared sevefabie.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Seivices NVantkisV'r GDmnnuAt-^^ UifeHK- Ceftfer'
The State Name of tb0 Contractor

kmL
Signature of Autt^rbc^ Representative Sigrfature of Authorized Representative

()' <'i'hnS>Sankni-^Mh hr\S
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date ^

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date^ ^
V
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAl COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010. to report on
dsAa related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut>-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is t>elow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of p^ormance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor Identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Trarisparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public l_aw 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: C^rtAOO'vl^
Cer-tter-

2
Oat

itle
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FORMA

As the Contractor identrfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
t)e{ow listed questions are true and accurate.

The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross .revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cpoperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to U2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchar^ge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Narrre:.

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

cuCH^eniori)
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